
Page 1 of 5

Notice of Meeting 

Surrey Police and Crime Panel

Date & time Place Contact
Wednesday, 19 
September 2018 
at 10.30 am

Ashcombe Suite, 
County Hall, Kingston 
upon Thames, Surrey 
KT1 2DN

Angela Guest
Room 122, County Hall
Tel 020 8541 9075

angela.guest@surreycc.gov.uk

Members

Cllr Ken Harwood (Chairman)
Cllr Charlotte Morley (Vice-Chairman)

Tandridge District Council 
Surrey County Council

Cllr Margaret Cooksey Mole Valley District Council
Mr Bryan Cross Independent Member
Cllr Graham Ellwood Guildford Borough Council 
Mr David Fitzpatrick-Grimes Independent Member
Cllr Pat Frost Waverley Borough Council
Cllr Nick Gething Spelthorne Borough Council 
Cllr Josephine Hawkins Surrey Heath Borough Council
Cllr Beryl Hunwicks Woking Borough Council
Cllr David Reeve Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 
Cllr Victor Broad Reigate & Banstead Borough Council
Cllr Andrew Burley Elmbridge Borough Council
Cllr Peter Waddell Runnymede Borough Council

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, e.g. large print or braille, or another language 
please either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, 
Room 122, County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, 
Surrey KT1 2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or 
email angela.guest@surreycc.gov.uk.

This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Angela Guest on 020 
8541 9075.



Page 2 of 5

PART 1
IN PUBLIC

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

The Chairman to report apologies for absence. 

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2018 as a 
correct record.

(Pages 
1 - 20)

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the 
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter 

(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or 

(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of 
any item(s) of business being considered at this meeting

NOTES:
 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any 

item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest

 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any 
interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the 
Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom the 
Member is living as a spouse or civil partner)

 Members with a significant personal interest may participate in 
the discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest 
could be reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

4 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

To receive any public questions.

Note:
Written questions from the public can be submitted no later than 
seven days prior to the published date of the annual or any ordinary 
public meeting, for which the Commissioner will be invited to provide a 
written response by noon on the day before the meeting, which will be 
circulated to Panel Members and the questioner.

5 COMMISSIONING ARRANGEMENTS

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey has published a 
refreshed commissioning strategy to align with his Police and Crime 
Plan for 2018-20. The strategy sets out his commissioning approach 
for the remaining two years of his term. 

(Pages 
21 - 32)



Page 3 of 5

6 POLICE AND CRIME PLAN QUARTERLY UPDATE

The PCC published a refreshed Police and Crime Plan for 2018 to 
2020.  This built on the previous plan issued in 2016. The refresh was 
informed by emerging crime trends, consultation, scrutiny of current 
force performance and meetings and visits with Surrey Police, public 
and partners.   This report gives a progress report on the Police and 
Crime Plan.

(Pages 
33 - 44)

7 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN

The purpose of this report is to inform the Police & Crime Panel about 
the Medium Term Financial Plan assumptions that are being made for 
the four year period 2019/20 to 2022/23.

(Pages 
45 - 50)

8 NEW RESPONSIBILITIES FOR POLICE AND CRIME 
COMMISSIONER REGARDING COMPLAINTS

This report aims to outline the changes to the complaints process 
resulting from the Policing & Crime Act 2017. The report attempts to 
set a timetable for these changes to be implemented and what the 
impact is likely to be for the Surrey Police and Crime Panel.

(Pages 
51 - 60)

9 FEEDBACK ON PERFORMANCE MEETINGS

This report provides an update on the meetings that have been held 
between the Police & Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable 
and what has been discussed in order to demonstrate that 
arrangements for good governance and scrutiny are in place.  

(Pages 
61 - 64)

10 DISCLOSURE ISSUES

The Police and Crime Panel to note the current scrutiny the Police & 
Crime Commissioner is providing on the subject of disclosure.

(Pages 
65 - 70)

11 COMMISSIONERS QUESTION TIME

For the Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning crime and 
policing in Surrey with the Commissioner.

(Pages 
71 - 72)

12 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME

To review the Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work 
Programme.

(Pages 
73 - 90)

13 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING

To note complaints against the Police and Crime Commissioner and 
the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner received since the last 
meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.

(Pages 
91 - 94)

14 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC

That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 



Page 4 of 5

disclosure of exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

PART 2
IN PRIVATE

15 REVIEW OF JOINT FINANCE TEAM

The Panel to note this exempt update report.

Confidential:  Not for publication under Paragraph 3
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)

(Pages 95 - 96)

16 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANELS

The Chairman will lead a closed discussion regarding the attached letter.

Confidential:  Not for publication under Paragraph 3
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)

(Pages 97 - 
100)

17 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next scheduled public meeting will be held on 28 November 2018.

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive

Tuesday, 11 September 2018



Page 5 of 5

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.  To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at 
reception for details.

Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with 
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending 
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.  

Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances.

It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.

Thank you for your co-operation

Note:  This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site 
- at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  
The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the meeting room and using 
the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.  

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and Democratic 
Services at the meeting.



This page is intentionally left blank



1

MINUTES of the meeting of the SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL held 
at 10.30 am on 28 June 2018 at Ashcombe Suite, County Hall, Kingston upon 
Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN.

These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Panel at its next meeting.

Members:
(*Present)

*Ken Harwood (Chairman)
*Ms Charlotte Morley (Vice-Chairman)
*Cllr Victor Broad
Borough Councillor Andrew Burley
Ken Harwood (Chairman)
Ms Charlotte Morley (Vice-Chairman)
David Reeve
Borough Councillor Beryl Hunwicks
Bryan Cross
David Fitzpatrick-Grimes

Apologies:

Cllr Josephine Hawkins
Cllr Graham Ellwood
Cllr Margaret Cooksey
Cllr Peter Waddell
Cllr Nick Gething

1/18 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  [Item 1]

Councillor Ken Harwood was proposed by Councillor David Reeve and 
seconded by Councillor Bryan Cross.

RESOLVED:

The Panel agreed the appointment of Councillor Ken Harwood as Police and 
Crime Panel Chairman for the Council year 2018/19.

2/18 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN  [Item 2]

Councillor Charlotte Morley was proposed by Councillor Beryl Hunswicks and 
seconded by Councillor Ken Harwood.

RESOLVED:

The Panel agreed the appointment of Councillor Charlotte Morley as Police 
and Crime Panel Vice Chairman for the Council year 2018/19.

3/18 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  [Item 3]

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Graham Ellwood, Nick 
Gething, Margaret Cooksey, Josephine Hawkins and Peter Waddell.

Page 1

2

Item 2



2

An apology for lateness was received from Councillor Andrew Burley who 
arrived at 10.35am.

4/18 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 12 APRIL 2018  [Item 4]

Key Points raised during discussion:

The Commissioner pointed out errors in minute 82/17 as given below.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 April 2018 were approved as a 
correct record subject to the following amendment of minute 82/17: 

That the second and third bullet points of paragraph 2 should read:
 Depending on where the new HQ was located, there could be another 

station located in the east of the county as the current Reigate station 
was not fit for purpose. If the new HQ was in the Eastern division, this 
would also be the divisional base and there won’t be another station.

 Woking police station would not be retained but there would still be full 
operational coverage for the Woking area. 

That in paragraph 3 Reigate Street should read Reigate station.

5/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 5]

None received.

6/18 PUBLIC QUESTIONS  [Item 6]

None received.

7/18 POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER'S ANNUAL REPORT  [Item 7]

Key Points raised during discussion:

1. Disappointment was expressed by one Member who thought that 
there was little information regarding tackling particular types of crime 
in the monthly update of the report.  The Commissioner stated that 
tackling crime was a high priority and that the Chief Constable would 
be happy to respond to specific queries at the informal meeting in 
October.

2. There was a general discussion around performance indicators.  The 
Commissioner reported that the dip in figures two years ago was due 
to disruption whilst police changes were taking place.  Whilst the 
number of crimes solved remained static the number of crimes 
reported had risen which meant that the performance indicator had 
dropped.  He also pointed out that Surrey’s figures were better than 
most.

3. A Member stated that he was supportive of the additional policy officer 
post in order to reduce re-offending.  The Commissioner explained 
that he was looking for evidence that work was succeeding in reducing 
crime and re-offending but it was hard to get the data. He reported that 
there was a new scheme called Checkpoint which was being worked 
on for Surrey and would look at offending as well as deferred 
prosecutions.  The Commissioner also stated that he was happy with 

Page 2

2



3

the Justice Minister’s decision not to build a further five women’s 
prisons because locking them up was not good for them or for the 
community.

There were several queries and comments regarding the 101 service:

4. A couple of Members had visited the 101 call centre and were very 
impressed with the set up and how the calls were dealt with. The 
Commissioner responded that the demand for 101 had increased 
alongside improvement and he believed it would continue to improve.

5. It was stated that when a caller when dials 101 the last option given is 
to report a crime and asked if this should be the first option and that it 
had taken 90 seconds listening to all the options to get to the most 
important one.  The Commissioner reminded the Panel that 101 is a 
non-emergency number and if a crime was in progress that 999 should 
be dialled.

6. The Panel asked what further public communication could be done.  
The Commissioner informed the Panel that the Force had just started 
re-running an advertising campaign that asked the public to ask 
themselves if the call they were about to make was a police matter.  
Fifty percent of calls were not police related matters.

7. It was stated that the 101 number goes down at 5pm on a Friday 
afternoon and callers are told to contact the local authority which is 
also closed from Friday evening.  The Commissioner stated that the 
101 number was a 24-hour service, but he would look into this 
particular case.  He also pointed out that council’s do have some out 
of hours services.

8. It was asked if the rise in 101 callers was due to police front desks 
closing and that this would need to be considered in line with the 
proposed estates strategy especially with regards to resources for 
101.  The Commissioner would check on this.

There were several queries and comments regarding traveller encampments:

9. Concern was expressed that illegal traveller encampments appeared 
to be not of great concern to the police who were slow to respond.

10. The Commissioner explained that encampments were a societal 
problem and not always a police problem.  More transit sites were 
needed.  There was nowhere for police to move travellers to.  Sussex 
had three sites but Surrey had none.  The police, whilst not touchy-
feely, were conscious that all people had rights.

11. The Commissioner also reported on the consultation regarding the 
legislation and it was believed by the police to be fit for purpose with a 
few tweaks.

12. The Commissioner also reported on the current government review of 
the law and powers available to deal with unauthorised site.  Police 
broadly felt that the powers available to them were fit for purpose with 
a few tweaks required.

RESOLVED:

The Panel accepted the Annual Report.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

Page 3

2



4

That formal notification of the Panels acceptance of the Annual Report would 
be sent to the Commissioner.

8/18 SURREY POLICE GROUP FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MONTH 12 
FINANCIAL YEAR 2017/18  [Item 8]

Key Points raised during discussion:

1. It was noted that IT was overspent for the last five to six years and a 
query about reserves was put to the Commissioner.  The Chief 
Finance Officer (CFO) responded that general reserves should be 
maintained at 3%, however the actual figure at this point was just 
under the 3% and he would continue to monitor this.

2. In response to a question regarding the gap between February and 
March over/under spend, the CFO explained some of the reasons for 
the large jump between underspend and overspend between these 
months.  He explained that following the merger of finance functions 
between Sussex and Surrey, both used different IT systems so there 
were a few difficulties around forecasting.  Additional software was 
due to be purchased to resolve this issue.  He went on to say that 
when the IT was in place and working, the financial forecasting would 
even out.  It was admitted that forecasting was a challenge at the 
moment but something that the CFO was working on to improve.

3. The CFO explained that there was a joint audit committee and that 
papers were public.  A link to this would be sent to the Panel.

4. The Commissioner responded by stating that a year ago he could not 
trust the figures he was given but the CFO was now on top of the 
problem to the point where he could now trust the figures.

5. The Commissioner also pointed out that Surrey had the lowest 
reserves in the country.

RESOLVED:

The Panel noted the report.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

That a link to the online papers for the joint audit committee be sent to the 
Panel.

9/18 OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 2017/18 END OF 
YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT  [Item 9]

Key Points raised during discussion:

1. In response to a query about whether Sussex contributed to the 
internal audit costs of the special audit commissioned for the joint 
Surrey/Sussex finance function, the CFO explained that it was Surrey 
that was unhappy with the service provision, so bore this cost.  Further 
information would be provided to the Panel after the meeting.

RESOLVED:

The Panel noted the report.

Page 4

2



5

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

That further information on the additional audit costs taken on by Surrey be 
forwarded to the Panel.

10/18 VICTIM SATISFACTION  [Item 10]

Key Points raised during discussion:
1. The Commissioner introduced his report and explained that there 

would hopefully be improved services from next year when the current 
provider contract ended.  The services were being brought back in-
house in conjunction with the police.  Users would have one point of 
contact via the new Victim Care Unit.  The Panel welcomed this news.

2. There were a couple of queries that the Commissioner did not have 
the answers to and would respond later – these are listed below as 
further actions.

3. The Commissioner explained that the take up of victim care services 
was lower than he would like but that under the new arrangements, 
this would hopefully be redressed.

4. An example of good work of police was cited by a Panel Member in 
respect of a burglary which had been witnessed. It was suggested that 
the public needed to consider updating their house alarm systems.  
The Commissioner would speak with crime reduction officers about 
this.

RESOLVED:

The Panel noted the report.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

That the Commissioner would provide information on the following 
unanswered queries:

 What percentage choose not be contacted again by the VARC 
(paragraph 2.3 of the report)?

 What does enhanced and non-enhanced mean (paragraph 2.6 of the 
report)?

 What are grades 1, 3 and 4 callers?

11/18 DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTERNAL VICTIM CARE UNIT  [Item 11]

Key Points raised during discussion:

1. The Chairman advised the Commissioner  that Panel members had 
received a letter from a current service provider but no response had 
been made, pending this meeting.  The Commissioner explained that 
the decision for the change of provider was taken after careful 
consideration.

2. In response to Member questions the Commissioner reported that 
funding for any new victim care unit would be through the PCC’s 
Victim Fund so the Commissioner would be involved and provide 
support although day to day operations would be by Surrey Police.  He 
also reported that most of the staff in the new unit would not police.  

Page 5

2



6

He would report back later on what ‘priority crime’ meant which was 
referred to in paragraph 3.1.7 of the submitted report.

RESOLVED:

To note the report.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

Report back on what ‘priority crime’ referred to in paragraph 3.1.7 of the 
submitted report.

12/18 FEEDBACK ON MANAGEMENT MEETINGS BETWEEN THE POLICE AND 
CRIME COMMISSIONER AND CHIEF CONSTABLE  [Item 12]

Key Points raised during discussion:
1. There was some misunderstanding on the meaning of the third 

paragraph on the fourth page of the report.  On the fourth line the word 
‘released’ should read ‘detained’.

2. There was discussion around burglary figures and the Commissioner 
stated that burglary figures, the number of arrests and solving of crime 
were higher, but accepted that these figures were still too low.

3. One Member stated that drug use figures were ‘off the chart’.  The 
Commissioner explained that whilst the figures were high, the police 
were on top of the situation in the short term but were more 
pessimistic about the longer term.  He explained that many drug users 
thought that it was alright to take drugs which shouldn’t be a crime.  
He also stated that where there is demand you will find a supplier.

4. In response to a Member query about quality of police files and 
subsequent disclosure of those files, the Commissioner explained that 
the Chief Constable had received national acclaim for work he had 
done on disclosure.  He also stated that file quality related to files for 
the Crown Prosecution Service; especially for rape and sex offence 
files.

RESOLVED:

To note the report.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

That the Panel be sent details of the following:
a. The new scorecard
b. Update of number of people still wanted for burglary following the 

HMIPC report

13/18 FRAUD UPDATE  [Item 13]

Key Points raised during discussion:

1. In response to questions from the Panel the Commissioner explained that:
(a) Whilst 440 crime referrals had been made to Surrey Police only 84 

had gone to trial.  That there was a national effort to tackle fraud 
as it was a growing area for the police.

Page 6

2



7

(b) That Operations Signature was a cross-border initiative to help 
those too embarrassed to report that they were a victim of fraud.  
Further details would be sent to Panel Members.

(c) That whilst engagement with business did take place it was difficult 
to get them to report fraud.  It was also recognised that there was 
little meaningful contact made with businesses, especially amongst 
the smaller businesses.

(d) The police do not have the resources or expertise to deal with 
banking fraud and therefore these were referred to banks. The 
police have to concentrate on serious fraud.  He also explained 
that individual Forces were responsible for the cost of serious 
fraud investigations and he believed it should be paid for 
nationally.

(e) With regard to the proposed staff changes within the Economic 
Crime Unit, the Commissioner stated that considerable effort had 
been made to multi-skill staff and he was confident that the Chief 
Constable would give this the priority it deserved.

(f) The Commissioner confirmed that there was an obligation on 
banks to report credit card scams but not all did.

RESOLVED:

To note the report.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

That details of Operation Signature be provided to Panel Members.

14/18 GOVERNANCE OF FIRE AND RESCUE IN SURREY  [Item 14]

Key Points raised during discussion:
1. The Commissioner introduced his report and explained that he was 

waiting for two crucial pieces of information before making a final 
decision on whether to take on fire governance in the Autumn of 2018.  
These were:
 The results of the current inspection of the fire service, and
 The outcome of Hertfordshire’s decision to take on fire 

governance.
2. In response to questions, the Commissioner stated that if he were to 

take on fire governance, this would come out of existing budgets.  He 
would need to provide a business case and include independent 
financial viability details.  The KPMG report had not identified any 
significant savings to be made by the Commissioner taking on fire 
governance.

RESOLVED:

To note the report.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

That an update be provided to the Panel in November 2018.

15/18 COMMISSIONER'S QUESTION TIME  [Item 15]

Page 7

2



8

Key Points raised during discussion:

A Panel Member asked the Commissioner about future planning and 
provision of accommodation for key service workers. The Commissioner 
accepted that relocation of staff would be difficult and that he had looked at 
this potential problem a few months ago but would take another look at it.

16/18 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING  [Item 16]

Key Points raised during discussion:

The Chairman introduced the report for noting.

RESOLVED:

The Panel noted the outcome of Complaint PCP031.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

None.

17/18 PCP BUDGET 2017/18  [Item 17]

Key Points raised during discussion:
1. The Chairman introduced the report and confirmed the fact that no 

Panel Members received an allowance.
2. It was noted that Surrey County Council had abolished the Special 

Responsibility Allowance for scrutiny of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner, and the concept of a ‘Lead Member’ abandoned and 
replaced by the designation of an ‘SCC Representative’.

RESOLVED:

The Panel noted the report.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

None.

18/18 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
[Item 18]

Key Points raised during discussion:
1. The Chairman introduced the Tracker and Forward plan.  There were 

several items that had previously been suggested by Members but 
had no details of what was being asked for.  These items were 
discussed and how they would be handled.

2. The Commissioner pointed out that requesting so many formal reports 
had an effect on his office and staff. Panel Members suggested that 
not all items required formal reports and some items only required a 
paragraph of explanation.

RESOLVED:

Page 8

2



9

1. To request a short briefing note containing the following items listed in 
the Forward Plan (Tracker R15/18):
 Use of drones – a Strategic overview.  Is there funding?
 Coercion – What are 'coercive crimes'?
 Neighbourhood Watch – A summary on its current position.
 CCTV Review update – details of where and how this will be 

provided especially as part of the Estates Strategy.

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

That an short briefing note on the above items be provided by the OPCC.

19/18 RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF THE COMPLAINTS SUB COMMITTEE  [Item 19]

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. The Panel discussed whether to increase the numbers of Members on 
the Complaints Sub-Committee as there had been occasions during 
the previous year when it had been difficult to reach a quorum.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Complaints Sub Committee membership be increased to 
seven members.

2. The Panel agreed the terms of reference for the Complaints Sub- 
Committee attached at Annex A.

3. The Panel appointed the following members to the Complaints Sub- 
Committee for the remainder of the 2018/19 Council year,

 Cllr Victor Broad
 Cllr Margaret Cooksey
 Cllr Ken Harwood
 Cllr Charlotte Morley
 Cllr David Reeve
 Independent Member David Fitzpatrick-Grimes
 Independent Member Bryan Cross 

4. The Panel agreed the Complaints Protocol, attached at Annex B.

ACTION/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

None.

20/18 RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF THE FINANCE SUB GROUP  [Item 20]

RESOLVED:

The Panel agreed the terms of reference for the Finance Sub-Group attached 
at Annex C,

Page 9

2



10

The Panel appointed the following members to the Finance Sub-Group for the 
remainder of the 2018/19 Council year,

 Independent Member Bryan Cross
 Cllr Josephine Hawkins
 Cllr Victor Broad
 Chairman 
 Vice-Chairman 

ACTIONS/FURTHER INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED:

None.

21/18 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 21]

The next meeting of the Police and Crime Panel meeting will be 
held on Wednesday 19 September 2018 at 10.30am in the 
Ashcombe Suite, County Hall, Kingston upon Thames.

Meeting ended at: 12.26 pm
______________________________________________________________

Chairman

Page 10

2



Annex A

28 June 2018

Surrey Police and Crime Panel

Complaints Protocol

1 Background

1.1 The Elected Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012 
make Surrey’s Police and Crime Panel (hereby referred to as “PCP”) responsible for 
overseeing complaints made about the conduct of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
(PCC) and the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner(DPCC), where appointed.

1.2 The PCP also has a responsibility to informally resolve noncriminal complaints about 
the conduct of the PCC and DPCC, as well as criminal complaints or conduct matters 
that are referred back to it by the Independent Police Complaints Commission (IPCC). 
Issues raised about local crime or neighbourhood concerns rather than about the 
conduct of the PCC or DPCC will be dealt with by the police force through normal 
channels of feedback rather than under the Regulations.

1.3 This document sets out how the PCP will manage the complaints process.

2 Initial Complaint Handling

2.1 In accordance with Regulation 7, the PCP has agreed to delegate initial receipt of 
complaints to the Chief Executive of the PCC’s Office (hereby referred to as “Chief 
Executive”). 

2.2 Where a complaint is sent directly to the PCP, the PCP’s Support Officer will refer the 
matter to the Chief Executive for initial consideration within 5 working days.

2.3 Upon receipt of a complaint, the Chief Executive will record the complaint, except in 
cases where he/she is satisfied that the subject-matter of the complaint is being/has 
been dealt with by means of criminal proceedings against the PCC/DPCC, or the 
complaint has subsequently been withdrawn in accordance with the Regulations.

2.3.1 Where the Chief Executive decides not to take action to notify the appropriate 
panel or record all or any part of the complaint, he/she will notify the 
complainant of this decision and the grounds on which it was made.

2.4 Once recorded, the Chief Executive will determine whether the PCP is the appropriate 
body to deal with the complaint. If it is not, the Chief Executive will notify the appropriate 
body. If it is, he/she will refer the matter in the manner outlined in Section 3.

2.4.1 The Chief Executive will refer non-criminal Complaints that are ‘out-of-scope’ 
of the PCP on to the most appropriate body.

2.5 Where the Chief Executive becomes aware of a Conduct Matter, except where the 
matter has been recorded as a Complaint or is being/has been dealt with by means of 

Page 11

Minute Item 19/18

Page 11

2



Annex A

28 June 2018

criminal proceedings, he/she will determine whether the PCP is the appropriate body 
to deal with it. If it is not, the Chief Executive will notify the appropriate body. If it is, 
he/she will record the Conduct Matter.

2.6 In the event that it becomes clear to the Chief Executive that a complaint or Conduct 
Matter involves any degree of criminality, he/she will refer (in such manner as the IPCC 
specifies) a Serious Complaint or Conduct Matter to the IPCC. This referral will occur 
no later than the end of the day when it first became clear that the matter constitutes 
a Serious Complaint or Conduct Matter.

2.6.1 Where the IPCC notifies the Chief Executive that it requires a Complaint or 
Conduct Matter to be referred to it, the Chief Executive will comply as soon as 
possible and in any event no later than the end of the day after such notification 
was made.

2.6.2 The Chief Executive of the PCC will notify the complainant (where applicable), 
and the person to whose conduct the matter relates (unless a decision has 
been taken that it might prejudice a possible future investigation) of the referral.

2.6.3 Where the IPCC refers a criminal or conduct complaint back to the PCP, the 
Chief Executive will refer the matter in the manner outlined in Section 3.

3 Disapplication of the Regulations

3.1 Having decided that a complaint does not need to be referred to the IPCC or having 
referred a complaint to the IPCC and had it referred back, the PCP Complaints Sub-
Committee may decide that a complaint should not be subjected to resolution in 
accordance with Part 4 of the regulations or that no action should be taken in relation 
to it at all. The Complaints Sub-Committee must notify the complainant and the person 
being complained about if they decide to handle the complaint in this manner. The 
Complaints Sub-Committee may only do this if the complaint falls into any one of the 
following specified categories:

3.1.1    A complaint by a member of the relevant office holder’s staff, arising from the 
staff member’s work;

3.1.2 A complaint that is more than 12 months old, where there is no good reason 
for the delay or the delay would be likely to cause injustice;

3.1.3 A complaint about conduct that is already the subject of another complaint;

3.1.4 An anonymous complaint that discloses neither the name nor address of the 
complainant; 

3.1.5 A complaint which is vexatious, oppressive or otherwise an abuse of process 
for dealing with complaints;

3.1.6 A complaint that is repetitious.

3.2 If the Chief Executive of the PCC considers that either there is an actual, or there could 
be a perceived, conflict of interest in respect of them taking any of the decisions 
detailed in Section 2, he/she shall refer the matter to the PCP’s Complaints Sub-

Page 12Page 12

2



Annex A

28 June 2018

Committee for it to take the decision. Such referral will be made no later than 2 working 
days after identifying the actual or perceived conflict of interest.

4 Referral of Complaint to the PCP

4.1 When the decision has been made to record a complaint that does not need to be 
referred to the IPCC, or a Serious Complaint or Conduct Matter that has been referred 
back by the IPCC, and falls under the responsibility of the PCP, the Chief Executive 
will:

4.1.1 Send a record of the complaint to the complainant and to the person 
complained about. In the latter case, the Chief Executive may decide to provide 
the complaint in a form which protects the identity of the complainant. The Chief 
Executive will also provide the complainant and the person complained about 
the contact details of the Panel’s Support Officer;

4.1.2 Refer the record, and copies of all the associated paperwork, to the Panel’s 
Support Officer within 5 working days of the complaint being recorded. 

4.2 On receipt of the complaint, the Panel’s Support Officer will:

4.2.1 Assess the complaint to ensure that it clearly identifies the alleged conduct 
matter.

4.2.2 Refer unclear complaints back to the Chief Executive of the Office of the PCC 
seeking further information.

4.2.3 Consider whether the complaint has been satisfactorily dealt with and if so, 
consult with the complainant to treat the complaint as withdrawn.

4.2.4 In appropriate cases, consider in consultation with the Chair of the Panel the 
suitability of the complaint for disapplication of part 4 of the regulations (see 
section 3).

4.2.5 In the event that a matter is considered suitable for a disapplication of Part 4 
of the Regulations, to consult the complainant and the PCC, before 
determining whether a disapplication is appropriate, whereupon the complaint 
will be recorded as complete. 

 
4.2.6 Share details of the complaint with the membership of the Complaints Sub-

Committee. The Sub-Committee is a working group made of six members of 
the Police and Crime Panel. Three members of the Sub-Committee must be 
present to consider a complaint. 

4.2.7 Convene a meeting of the Complaints Sub-Committee, normally to be held 
within 4 weeks of the referral of the complaint.

4.2.8 Write to the complainant, setting out timescales and providing details about the 
informal resolution procedure, and giving the complainant 2 weeks to make 
further comments in support of his/her complaint. Where the Panel’s Support 
Officer believes that the circumstances of the case are such that the 
Complaints Sub-Committee may decide to treat the complaint as having been 

Page 13Page 13

2



Annex A

28 June 2018

resolved, he/she will ask the complainant to provide his/her representations in 
this regard for the Complaints Sub-Committee to take into account; and

4.2.9 Write to the person complained about, setting out timescales and providing 
details about the informal resolution procedure; and giving him/her 2 weeks to 
make comments in response to the complaint.

5 Considering the Complaint

5.1 The Panel’s Support Officer will compile a brief report for the Complaints Sub-
Committee, setting out the pertinent details of the complaint, recording any failure by 
the person complained about to comment on the complaint and making suggestions 
for the next steps.

5.2 Upon meeting, the Complaints Sub-Committee will first consider whether the complaint 
has been satisfactorily dealt with and, subject to any representations by the 
complainant, may decide to treat the complaint as having been resolved. In such a 
case, the Complaints Sub-Committee’s reasons will be recorded and notified to the 
parties.

5.3 The complaints Sub-Committee shall have regard to:

5.3.1 The Code of Conduct of the Police and Crime Commissioner;

5.3.2 Whether the complaint discloses a specific conduct failure identifiable within 
the Code of Conduct of the Police and Crime Commissioner;    

5.3.3 Whether the complaint related to operational policing matters which the Police 
and Crime Commissioner has no authority over;

5.3.4 The remedies available to it.

5.4 If the Complaints Sub-Committee believes that the matter has not yet been 
satisfactorily dealt with, it will determine the most suitable course of action to assist 
informal resolution. The Panel will take into account any applicable guidance issued 
by the Secretary of State and may also consider any guidance issued by the IPCC 
pursuant to section 22 of the Police Reform Act 2002 on local resolution. Any such 
action plan will include an indicative timeframe. Any action plan may include the 
following:

5.4.1 Asking the Panel’s Support Officer to write an explanatory letter to the 
complainant on behalf of the Complaints Sub-Committee;

5.4.2 Requesting that an officer of the PCC’s Office write an explanatory letter to the 
complainant;

5.4.3 Suggesting a change to the Office of the PCC policy;

5.4.4 Requesting that an apology be tendered by the person complained about (no 
apology may be tendered on behalf of the person complained against unless 
that person has admitted the alleged conduct and agreed to the apology).

Page 14Page 14

2



Annex A

28 June 2018

5.5 In accordance with Regulations, the Complaints Sub-Committee will not conduct an 
investigation1. The Complaints Sub-Committee may exercise its delegated powers to 
require the person complained against to provide information or documents or attend 
before it to answer questions or give evidence, as this will not be regarded as an 
investigation. However, any other step intended to gather information about the 
complaint, other than inviting the comments of the complainant and the person 
complained against, will not be permitted.

5.6 If, at any stage, the IPCC informs the PCP that it requires the complaint to be referred 
to it, or if the Complaints Sub-Committee decides that the matter has a criminal 
element and therefore needs to be referred to the IPCC, the informal resolution 
process will be discontinued.

5.7 The Panel’s Support Officer will make a record of any informal resolution and will, 
usually within 5 working days, provide copies to the complainant and the person 
complained about.

5.8 The PCP shall not publish any part of any such record unless the Panel:

5.8.1 has given the complainant and the person complained against the opportunity 
to make representations in relation to the proposed publication; and

5.8.2 having considered any such representations, is of the opinion that publication 
is in the public interest.

5.9 As a working group of the PCP, the Complaints Sub-Committee will meet in private 
and will report to each quarterly scheduled meeting of the PCP summarising any 
complaints that have been considered since the last meeting, including the outcome. 

5.10 If agreed by the full membership of the Sub-Committee, the informal resolution of a 
complaint can be considered through ‘electronic’ means, including email and 
teleconferencing, depending upon the evidence provided and complexity of the 
complaint. 

6 Complaints about the PCP

6.1 A complainant who is not satisfied with the outcomes of the Complaints Sub-
Committee may make a complaint to the LGO (Local Government Ombudsman) who 
will consider the case- http://www.lgo.org.uk/make-a-complaint. 

6.2 Any complaints about the Surrey Police and Crime Panel or a Panel Member will need 
to be directed to the Monitoring Officer of the host authority. 

1 The Elected Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012

Page 15Page 15

2

http://www.lgo.org.uk/make-a-complaint


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16

2



Annex B - SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL COMPLAINT HANDLING FLOWCHART

28 June 2018

Complaint regarding alleged 
conduct matter by PCC/DPCC 

(Including alleged criminal 
conduct)

Information regarding alleged 
criminal conduct by PCC/DPCC 

comes to light (‘conduct 
matter’)

Assessed by Chief Executive of the Office of the PCC who assesses the matter and unless 
specified circumstances apply records it and in most cases sends copies to relevant 

parties (where there is an actual or perceived conflict of interest, matter is referred to 
the PCP Complaints Sub-Committee for recording/referral).

 After recording-

If criminal conduct alleged, 
matter is referred to the IOPC 

and parties are notified of this in 
most cases

In all other cases, matter referred to PCP Complaints Sub-Committee (convened by 
Panels Support Officer) - complaint takes one of the following routes- 

Sub-Committee to handle complaint (including complaints 
referred back by IPCC) in accordance with informal resolution 

process (see complaints protocol) – it has powers to require 
person complained against to provide info/docs or attend 

before it. No powers to investigate. Various options for 
informal resolution. Can refer to IOPC.

If complaint falls within specified 
categories, sub-committee can 

disapply informal resolution 
process and handle as it sees fit or 

take no further action

Where conduct matter is referred 
back by IOPC, Sub-Committee can 

handle as it sees fit 

End of process, parties notified, 
decision whether to publish outcome 
following parties’ representations to 

Sub-Committee

Glossary

PCC- Police and Crime 
Commissioner

DPCC- Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner

IOPC- Independent Office for 
Police ConductP

age 17
P

age 17

2



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 18

2



ANNEX C

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
FINANCE SUB-GROUP

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Purpose

To monitor and review the Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner’s budget proposals 
(including the proposed precept) and make recommendations to the Panel as 
appropriate.

Membership of the Group 

3-6 members of the Surrey Police and Crime Panel.

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Panel will be ex-officio members of the sub-group.

Roles/Functions

 To develop a good understanding of the Surrey Police budget.

 To question/challenge the Commissioner about the financial information provided 
in support of the precept and identify any further information which might be 
required, so that any issues can be addressed at an early stage.

 To carry out detailed scrutiny of specific budget issues as necessary.

 To provide a steer to the Commissioner and/or the Surrey Police and Crime 
Panel on action to be taken to address any budget issues identified.

 To lead the discussion when budget issues are discussed by the full Panel, 
ensuring that other members of the Panel have a good understanding and can 
make informed decisions. 

Page 19

Minute Item 20/18

Page 19

2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20

2



SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

OPCC Commissioning Strategy
19 September 2018

SUMMARY

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey has published a refreshed 
commissioning strategy to align with his Police and Crime Plan for 2018-20. The 
strategy sets out his commissioning approach for the remaining two years of his 
term. 

Commissioning by the OPCC is conducted using three funding streams: 

 The Community Safety Fund (a discretionary fund set up by the PCC)
 The Reducing Reoffending Fund (as above)
 The Victims Fund (received from the Ministry of Justice)

The strategy details principles, priorities and themes, which direct the use of the 
above resource to commission projects and services for the people of Surrey. 

To ensure transparency, the strategy is published on the OPCC online funding 
hub, along with statistics on how funding is utilised. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The panel is asked to note the commissioning strategy. 

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None 

LEAD OFFICER: Lisa Herrington, Head of Policy and Commissioning 

TELEPHONE 
NUMBER:

01483 630 200

E-MAIL: Lisa.herrington@surrey.pnn.police.uk 

Page 21

5

Item 5

mailto:Lisa.herrington@surrey.pnn.police.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Commissioning Strategy 
2018-2020

 

Page 23

5



Foreword from the Police and Crime Commissioner
 

The priorities for 2018-20 set out in my new Police and Crime Plan
underpin all commissioning of services and activities by my office, using
funding allocated by the Government. They are as follows:

 

Shortly after my election as Police and Crime Commissioner in 2016, I
issued my Police and Crime Plan, outlining my priorities for policing,
crime reduction and community safety in Surrey. This was followed by
the introduction of my commissioning strategy, aligned to these
priorities. Over the past two years, much progress has been made and
I’ve now refreshed both these important documents to set out my
vision for the remaining two years of my term.

 

Tackling crime and keeping surrey safe
 Building confident communities

 Supporting victims
 Preventing harm

 Making every pound count
 A force fit for the future

 

Last year, Victims Commissioner Baroness Newlove visited Surrey to learn more about how we
commission victim services in Surrey. She was able to spend time with the leads from many of the
specialist services commissioned by the OPCC and hear about the newly commissioned support for
victims of anti-social behaviour. Survivors of domestic abuse also bravely shared their experiences
and the types of support that had really made a difference in their lives, so Baroness Newlove could
understand how this informed commissioning and continues to do so.

  
More recently, our commissioning of services to improve safety within diverse communities has
been recognised nationally by the Revolving Doors spotlight report, which highlights how PCCs
across the country are tackling violence against women and girls. Surrey Minority Ethnic Forum
(SMEF) received grant funding from the Community Safety Fund to run projects to understand
issues impacting on black, Asian, and minority ethnic (BAME) communities in Surrey. Funding also
enabled SMEF to create safe spaces to access support and generate expertise within the
communities to spot safeguarding concerns and ensure the right help is offered.

  
In addition, the Community Safety Fund has also commissioned a wide range of crime prevention,
safety and diversionary initiatives for children and young people, supporting the next generation for
a positive future.

  
As well as making sure the right support is provided for victims of crime, I launched a new fund
targeted towards reducing re-offending. Work with ex-offenders is vital to get their lives back on
track, prevent future crime and further victims. This fund has commissioned new projects focused
on key social factors known to reduce re-offending, such as homelessness and lack of employment.

  
There is no doubt that the contribution of the voluntary sector to creating a safer Surrey is immense
and I have provided greater stability to deliver efficient and quality services by introducing multi-
year funding for core services. In addition, we launched the OPCC online Funding Hub to increase
transparency and efficiency.

  
So it has been a busy two years and I look forward to building on what has been achieved for the
public we serve.

 
David Munro

Page 24

5



The Community Safety Fund

Commissioning Principles

Introduction

The Police and Crime Commissioner has three funding streams used to commission projects and
services:

 

Each year the Commissioner sets aside a proportion of the Police Grant to fund
initiatives aimed at making Surrey safer. In 2018/19 £500,000 was set aside for this
purpose.

 

The Victim Fund
This fund is comprised solely of a grant allocation to the PCC by the Ministry of Justice
for the purpose of commissioning services for victims of crime and family members. It
must be spent in accordance with the specific conditions to help those affected by crime
to cope and recover. In 2018/19 £1,372,554 of funding was allocated to Surrey PCC.

 

Remember who we are commissioning for – whether that be a local resident, a victim of crime or
an offender, they are at the centre of the service.

  
Respond to the specific needs of Surrey’s residents.

  
Encourage and facilitate service providers to work together and provide clear user pathways.

  
Be bold and innovative in our approach, whilst respecting and building on good practice already
in place.

  
Develop services which work hand-in-hand with Surrey Police, partners and the Criminal Justice
System to improve a person’s experience.

  
Work with our partners to make the best use of our resources, commissioning services together
when it is right to do so.

  
Provide strong management, ensuring that all funding is allocated fairly and transparently
against need, that services are outcome focussed, provide good value for money and
continuously improve.

  
Invest in future services by medium to long-term planning and building evidence of good practice.

 

OPCC commissioning is built upon an evidence-base of local need and will be guided and driven by
local principles. Our commissioning will:

 

The Reducing Reoffending Fund
 Each year the Commissioner sets aside a proportion of the Police Grant to fund

initiatives aimed at reducing re-offending. In 2018/19 £250,000 was set aside for this
purpose.

 

Page 25

5



Commissioning Priority 1
 

Surrey is one of the safest places to live in the country, but the breadth of criminal activity that we
must protect the public from is no different to anywhere else.

  
People must be able to live freely, feeling safe in their own home and in their community. For many
reasons, we know some of the most harmful crimes and behaviour will not be reported to the
police and perpetrators exploit this vulnerability to continue activity that significantly damages
the lives of adults and children.

  
It is therefore imperative that we tackle the root causes of crime and anti-social behaviour, offer
the right support to victims at the earliest opportunity when needed and bring offenders to
justice.

 

Cutting crime and keeping Surrey safe
 

Prevention
 

We must ensure that prevention activity is relevant and keeps pace with changing threats to stop
crime from happening in the first place. Criminals are employing new ways of conducting activity
that harms and exploits others. Commissioning of prevention activity will be informed by these new and
emerging trends.

 

Early intervention
 

Surrey must be a place where criminal activity and behaviour that harms others is recognised, is not
tolerated and people have the confidence to report any concerns to the police. Often, there may be
warning signs that harm is being done, but for many reasons the police may not be alerted.
Commissioned services will ensure that help is easily accessible at the earliest opportunity.

 

Response
 

Working with other partners is critical to reducing crime, dealing with anti-social behaviour
effectively and keeping people safe. Activity with partners is wide ranging from tackling serious and
organised crime to keeping Surrey’s roads safe. We will continue to build on services that have proved
successful in keeping Surrey safer and adaptable to emerging crimes.

 

Page 26

5



Building Capacity
 

Working with Communities
 

Surrey has a vast network of experts working in the police, public services and voluntary sector to
prevent harm and support victims of crime and their family members. It is a talented workforce that
needs the right resources in order to keep pace with demand and the changing nature of crime. We
will show strong leadership and support for service providers, helping to build capacity and capability in
challenging times.

 

Engaging with people living in all our communities will inform our approach to commissioning. We
will continue to be agile in our approach, recognising local need and being responsive,
commissioning services that help to reduce crime in Surrey. We will continue to support grass-root
projects in our communities and multi-agency collaboration to increase public safety and confidence.

 

Building Resilience
 

Empowering children and young people to make informed decisions in relation to their own safety
is vital to build resilience in this generation for the future. We will continue to commission projects
that prevent harm to children and young people, equip them to stay safe and have positive futures.

 

Commissioning Priority 2
 

Surrey is a diverse county with over one million people living within both rural and urban
communities. Key to greater public safety is the work between communities, police, public
services and the voluntary sector and it’s important that we understand the experience of those
affected by criminal activity and what makes people in Surrey feel unsafe.

 

Building Confident Communities
 

Commissioning Priority 3
 

Crime and anti-social behaviour can have a long-lasting impact on a victim’s life and their family
members. It is therefore vital that all services are trauma-informed, seeking to promote recovery
and prevent further re-victimisation. The services we commission will genuinely listen to a
person’s experience to respond to both emotional and physical safety needs, working with them
for a positive outcome.

 

Supporting Victims
 

Understanding what works
 The Assistant Commissioner for Victims has for the past six years championed the voice of victims

in Surrey. In particular, she has exposed the long lasting damage caused by crimes such as domestic
abuse, sexual assault and rape, giving a voice to victims often unheard. The OPCC has shared this
insight across Criminal Justice partners and we have worked collaboratively to put in place the right
support for children, young people and adults affected by crime and anti-social behaviour. We will
continue to advocate a trauma-informed, needs-led, strengths-based approach to commissioning support
services for all victims of crime.

 
Page 27

5



Seamless Support
 

We know that engaging with the criminal justice system for victims of crime can at times feel
overwhelming, with contact from lots of different people. The Police and Crime Commissioner is re-
modelling the way wraparound, quality care and support is provided for all victims of crime and their
family members, ready to launch a new service in March 2019. This service will complement and
work alongside the broad range of specialist services and activities commissioned to improve
outcomes for victims of crime in Surrey (see section 4 – commissioning themes). We will ensure that
support for victims is seamless from their very first interaction with services and help will be available
whether they wish to report to the police or not.

 

Commissioning Priority 4
 

Preventing harm is at the centre of our policing mission and recognising a person’s vulnerability
because of their situation or circumstances is of paramount importance. We know that children
and adults throughout their normal daily routine will have many interactions with friends, family
as well as professionals who have the ability to offer help. This is very often not police, but it could
be a teacher, a GP, a school friend or work colleague. Commissioning targeted towards this
priority of preventing harm will seek to break down barriers that trap people in a cycle of crime
and address multiple needs for both victims and offenders, such as mental health and substance
misuse.

 

Preventing Harm
 

 Identifying Vulnerability
 

For a child, young person or adult in need of help,
having an interaction with anyone who can spot that
something is not right and knows what to do next to
ensure their safety can be life-changing. The police
cannot achieve this alone. The community, as well as
professionals within partner agencies can all play a
part in making Surrey safer. The services we
commission will enable police and partners to protect
people from harm and ensure their safety.

 

Reducing Re-offending
 

The Surrey OPCC has a re-offending strategy to
target work with police and partners towards
breaking the cycle of crime. Punishment through
prison sentences are only part of the solution needed
to prevent criminals from re-offending. We know in
particular that for those serving short sentences,
over half will go on to re-offend and we must do more
to address problems that prevent offenders from
rehabilitating and rebuilding their lives. We will
commission services that work to prevent offenders from
committing crime in the future and that address social
factors impacting negatively on their rehabilitation, such
as lack of employment opportunities, homelessness and
substance misuse.

 

Page 28

5



Commissioning themes

Commissioning from the three funding streams (Community Safety Fund, Reducing Re-offending
Fund and Victims Fund) is structured within themes to deliver against the PCC’s priorities. Below
we detail services already commissioned and future specific areas of focus.

 

Antisocial
behaviour

Support for high risk and vulnerable
victims

  
Local enforcement, partnership and
problem-solving activity

  
Road safety initiatives

 

Early Intervention
 

Online safety prevention and
education

  
Life skills for children to help
keep themselves and others safe

  
Youth social action projects

  
Youth crime diversionary activity

 

Exploitation
 

Developing co-ordinated strategy to
deal with youth violence and
exploitation

  
Support for children and families
experiencing or at risk of
exploitation

  
Therapeutic support

  
Building professional capability

 

Domestic abuse

Community based outreach support
and independent advocacy

  
Specialist children and young people
services in the community and in
refuge

  
Pan Surrey helpline

  
Embedded advocacy in police team

  
Domestic Homicide Review
capability support

 

Page 29

5



Commissioning themes

Harmful Traditional
Practices

Engaging with communities to help
them recognise and report Harmful
Traditional Practices

  
Professional capability building

 

Hate crime

Raising community awareness of
hate crime

  
Initiatives to encourage increased
reporting

 

Reducing re-offending

Supported housing
  

Homelessness outreach services
  

Counselling and mentoring
  

Increasing employability and
generating work opportunities

  
Specialist intervention for people
experiencing multiple disadvantage

 

Sexual abuse and rape

Independent advocacy for adults,
children and young people

  
Provision of local helpline

  
Counselling services

 

Page 30

5



Contact us

01483 630200
 

OPCC
 PO Box 101 

Guildford  
Surrey 

 GU1 9PE
 

SurreyPCC@surrey.pnn.police.uk
 

If you would like to contact us about any of the detail covered within this strategy, please use the
information below:

Our dedicated funding hub provides easy access to
commissioning news, information and resources.

 

funding.surrey-pcc.gov.uk
 

Page 31

5



This page is intentionally left blank



SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

POLICE AND CRIME PLAN 2018-2020 – PROGRESS 
19 September 2018

INTRODUCTION

The PCC published a refreshed Police and Crime Plan for 2018 to 2020.  This built on 
the previous plan issued in 2016. The refresh was informed by emerging crime trends, 
consultation, scrutiny of current force performance and meetings and visits with Surrey 
Police, public and partners.   

The six objectives set out in the 2018-2020 plan are as follows:

 Tackling crime and keeping people safe
 Building confident communities
 Supporting victims
 Preventing harm
 Making every pound count 
 A Force fit for the future 

The plan was published in May 2018 and is available on-line on the website of the 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) or in paper copy on request. 
This report provides an update on how the plan has been met to date. 

1.1 Tackling Crime and Keeping People Safe

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:

 Combatting the threat of terrorism
 Preventing and solving crimes that cause most harm
 Serious and Organised Crime
 Problem solving 
 Maintaining a local policing presence
 Dealing with crime and anti-social behaviour 
 Contacting the police 
 Roads policing.

Activity that has taken plan in the OPCC is outlined below, along with progress made 
by Surrey Police and performance measures, where appropriate. 

Combatting the threat of terrorism remains one of the top considerations for the 
PCC in keeping Surrey safe.   The PCC continues to be briefed personally on a 
quarterly basis on counter terrorism activity and Prevent work.  In addition, quarterly 
formal scrutiny takes place at the South East regional meetings, as Counter Terrorism 
is a regional unit.  The PCC is taking part in Project Griffin in September.  This is a 

Page 33

6

Item 6



training event which helps public and staff be prepared to respond to terrorist 
incidents.

Additional scrutiny of Prevent partnership activity took place following the independent 
review into the Parson’s Green incidents.  The PCC also took an active role in 
speaking to the media to provide public reassurance around changes that are being 
made by partners to better manage the Prevent programme in Surrey. A new Prevent 
delivery structure has been established in line with the national recommendations. The 
Prevent Engagement Group (PEG) will report regularly into the Community Safety 
Board, chaired by the PCC.

he Government published a new counter terrorism strategy in June 2018.  The PCC is 
scrutinising this locally through the South East Regional Board and discussions with 
the Chief Constable.    https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/counter-terrorism-
strategy-contest-2018.   The PCC also asked the Chief Constable to comment on any 
local lessons that could be learned from the Kerslake report into the Manchester Arena 
bombings.   

The plan outlines the need to prevent and solve those crimes that cause 
significant harm to individuals in Surrey such as child abuse, sexual abuse and 
domestic abuse.  Reports of these crimes continue to increase, indicating a growing 
confidence to report.  Police resources have been increased over the last few years to 
investigate these crimes and preventative work is needed to protect others from harm.  
Levels of high harm crimes are monitored regularly by the OPCC.  The PCC also held 
a specific scrutiny of public protection plans at his July 2018 performance meeting.  A 
member of the OPCC team attends the Public Protection Executive Board to support 
Force plans and identify any areas of concern.

Detailed reports have been shared at the Community Safety Board exploring how best 
the Government’s Serious Violence Strategy can be taken forward in Surrey.  An 
OPCC officer is leading a submission to the national Early Intervention Youth Fund.  
There is also a small working group – Preventing Young People from getting involved 
in Serious and Organised Crime (SOC) - which will support and coordinate action. A 
new SOC/Serious Violence Strategy was agreed at the SOC partnership.

Another area of criminality causing harm in Surrey is Serious and Organised Crime 
Groups.  These are groups that carry out drug dealing, fraud, modern slavery and 
human trafficking and cybercrime to gain money or other advantage. The PCC 
regularly monitors Surrey Police work in tackling these gangs and has funded and 
taken part in events in recent months to tackle the violence associated with these 
gangs.  

The criminal exploitation of children is a geographically widespread form of harm that 
is happening here in Surrey.  Children are being groomed into County Lines which is 
the police term for urban gangs supplying drugs to suburban areas as well as market 
and coastal towns, using dedicated mobile phone lines.  On 12 June, Surrey Police, 
along with the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey, held a free 
County Lines and Gangs Awareness conference for all professionals who work with 
and support vulnerable children and young people. The aim of the conference was to 
help front-line professionals understand how gangs work, spot the signs of a child 
involved in a gang and know the next steps to take.  Over 600 individuals attended the 

Page 34

6

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/counter-terrorism-strategy-contest-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/counter-terrorism-strategy-contest-2018


event where they heard from guest speakers such as a former gang member and a 
victim of criminal and sexual exploitation.

Over the last few months the OPCC has also been instrumental in the setting up of a 
Surrey Modern Slavery Partnership, chaired by the Diocese of Guildford and reporting 
into the wider SOC partnership.   An awareness-raising event for businesses, focusing 
on Modern Slavery was held on 3 July 2018, attended by over 40 businesses in 
Surrey.  

In terms of problem solving, the PCC has supported investment in burglary 
prevention kits to help tackle burglary gangs operating in the county.  There are some 
plans to review the neighbourhood policing model, which will be reported to the 
September PCC’s Performance Meeting and to the panel in due course.  

Crime trends are regularly monitored in the PCC’s performance meetings.   These 
take place every 6 weeks – alternately in private and webcast session. Of particular 
concern to residents in late 2017 and early 2018 was an increase in theft and burglary.  
Burglary is now showing an improvement after the increased trend seen in 2017, with 
a 19% decrease in the latest year to date figures.   Vehicle theft has shown a rise this 
year of 12%.  Robbery has also risen from 106 offences to 159 offences, a 50% 
increase.   The PCC also regularly scrutinise the Chief Constable with regard to any 
recent crime trends and what action is being taken, for example the recent thefts of 
ATM machines. 

The ability for the public to contact Surrey Police is regularly monitored at the PCC’s 
6 weekly scrutiny of the Chief Constable.  Answering of 999 calls remains excellent 
with most calls answered within a few seconds.  For the non-emergency 101 number, 
performance is less consistent as resources are flexed to prioritise 999 calls when 
there is high demand.  However, performance continues to show a gradual 
improvement with average answering times currently at 1 minute and 13 seconds for 
April to July 2018.  The OPCC continues to give messages to the public with regard to 
the 101 number and explain that in times of high demand for emergency response, 
101 may have longer answering times.   New queue busting technology (where a 
caller is told their place in the queue and can choose to be called back instead of 
holding) is being put in place which should also improve the customer experience.  
There is a continued increase in the use of on-line reporting forms rather than 101.  
Surrey Police is part of national work to make reporting easier for customers who 
prefer to report on-line. 

The OPCC continues to work with Surrey Police and Surrey County Council to develop 
and implement the Surrey Safer Roads Partnership, with a meeting set up on 18th 
September to discuss the launch of the partnership. 

Page 35

6



1.2 Building Confident Communities

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:

 Engagement with Surrey Police
 Encourage communities to get involved
 Working with all of Surrey’s diverse communities
 Children and young people
 Partnership problem solving 

The OPCC is working with Surrey Police on encouraging communities to get 
involved in community safety activities.   An OPCC officer attends the force’s 
Volunteering Governance Board.  The PCC has provided funding to support the 
force’s Cadet Scheme for a third year and has funded an officer to ensure that the 
development and support of Special Constables is maintained.  The OPCC continues 
to have a very active Independent Custody Visitor Scheme with around 50 volunteers.  
The OPCC attends Surrey Neighbourhood Watch meetings and is supporting a 
funding bid. 

The PCC wishes to ensure that he engages with, listens to and works with all of 
Surrey’s diverse communities.  Over the last few months he has attended the 
Independent Advisory Group, visited prisons, met with the True Honour group and met 
with Surrey Leaders. He has also attended a number of local resident and community 
groups, including Leatherhead Residents’ Association, a provider of youth services in 
Farnham and Lower Kingswood Residents’ Association.  The OPCC are also currently 
liaising with the Institute of Directors to hold a cyber-security event at the Police 
Headquarters for local members.    

The PCC has also met with representatives from the GRT (Gypsy, Roma and 
Traveller) community, as well as councillors and residents concerned with 
unauthorised encampments in their area.  He has called for better national solutions 
and more transit sites to be made available nationally and in Surrey and will be 
pursuing this issue with Surrey council leaders.  The PCC has held a number of 
meetings with Surrey Police to ensure that police are taking robust action when there 
is evidence of any criminality taking place associated with unauthorised encampments. 

The PCC has supported Surrey Police in adopt a StopHate App for reporting hate 
crime.

Support for early intervention projects for Children and Young People (CYP) 
continues with the OPCC working closely with GASP, the Eikon Charity, East Surrey 
YMCA and other smaller groups to ensure young people have the best start in life. The 
OPCC have also been working with Surrey County Council on their Early Help project. 
The OPCC has also been working with partners at the Online Safety Group and the 
missing and exploited children and young people forums, through the CYP Partnership 
and volunteering groups.

The OPCC has been working with Surrey Youth Focus to develop a programme where 
young people develop and make short videos on various topics to inform and educate 

Page 36

6



young people on what the police do, how to report a crime and videos on areas of 
threat.  The OPCC has worked with Surrey Community Foundation to implement the 
#IWill campaign which looks to young people to drive change locally.

In terms of partnership, Joint Enforcement Teams continue to develop. The OPCC 
has been improving the working relationship between police and councils by 
developing clear protocols. The OPCC has also been speaking to three other areas 
about implementing JETs with two further JETs being delivered in 2018/19.  A Surrey 
wide event is being planned for December to share, learn and challenge partners on 
the role of JETs and their place in the partnership.

The OPCC has also asked Surrey Police to explore how the response to anti-social 
parking can be improved with Reigate and Banstead Borough Council looking to take 
on more powers.

1.3 Supporting Victims 

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:
 Supporting victims of crime and anti-social behaviour 
 Providing specialist services
 Ensuring value for money and collaboration
 Supporting victims and witnesses through the Criminal Justice System

The OPCC is currently in the process of changing the way that victims are 
supported, moving to an internally-delivered Victim Care Unit at the conclusion of the 
current contract.  A separate paper has been provided to the Panel.  The Victim Care 
Unit (VCU) programme board and delivery board have been established to see 
through the changes. 

In terms of specialist service provision, e.g. support for rape victims, domestic 
abuse outreach services etc., all core services are in place and running as expected 
and the OPCC are currently working with providers to explore service provision in 
2019/20 and onwards.  All key providers have been briefed and are working to ensure 
they can provide the required data for the OPCC to be able to monitor their 
performance.

The OPCC has funded Alliance Support Coaching (ASC) in Surrey to provide support 
to people experiencing anti-social behaviour or difficulties with neighbours.  The 
Alliance Support Coaching (ASC) service has gone from strength to strength with 
other police areas looking to recreate the model of service. The Project Manager has 
also taken on working with more long-term, chaotic clients to support them in their 
needs and reduce the burden on statutory services.

To achieve value for money and ensure joined up working the OPCC has been 
working to better co-commission domestic abuse support services.  A meeting has 
been recently held with the Chief Executives and trustees of community based 
domestic abuse outreach and refuge services in Surrey to improve communication 
regarding co-commissioning process with Surrey partners and to understand their 
concerns.  A paper has been submitted to the Community Safety Board outlining co-

Page 37

6



commissioning issues to be overcome for domestic abuse and recommendations 
within that paper are now being actioned by SCC Interim Head of MASH and 
Community Safety Team Carl Bussey. However, due to restructuring within SCC and 
decision-making relating to the family safeguarding model, there is no clarity at present 
within SCC as to the services it is wishing to commission for domestic abuse. 
Therefore there continues to be no certainty of funding for outreach and refuge 
services beyond 1 April 2019, with multiple grants due to expire and this is causing 
OPCC and partners significant concern about the stability of domestic abuse services. 
The PCC has notified Dave Hill, Executive Director for Children, Learning and Families 
of his intention and that of Surrey Police to roll over grant funding until April 2020 and 
in addition, will discuss what uplift may be possible from the start of the next financial 
year. The OPCC and Surrey Police are not in a position to sustain services without the 
valued commitment and contribution of SCC and hope they will consider doing the 
same. 

The OPCC’s Funding Hub continues to receive significant usage, with all small grants 
now processed online. Our intention is to move standard applications online from 
2019/20. The OPCC is also exploring use of digital signatures to reduce paperwork 
and move towards a paperless system.

The Assistant PCC and OPCC staff are continuing to attend court to speak to victims 
and witnesses about their experiences through the Criminal Justice System and to 
provide feedback so that improvements can be made.

1.4 Preventing Harm

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:

 Identifying vulnerable people and reducing harm
 Supporting those with mental health needs
 Help for those with multiple needs
 Missing people
 Reducing reoffending 

As part of identifying vulnerable people and reducing harm, a refreshed Surrey Against 
Domestic Abuse Strategy 2018-23 has been recently finalised and presented by the 
OPCC to the Community Safety Board and Health and Wellbeing Board in June 2018.  
https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/your-health/domestic-abuse/professionals/surrey-
against-domestic-abuse-strategy. 

The Domestic Homicide Review Oversight Group has been established and has met 
to start action planning. There has been willingness from other partners to be involved 
and a commitment to see a better process developed which remembers the victims 
and delivers the lessons learned.

A coherent plan (known as ‘MEAM’ – Making Every Adult Matter) has been launched 
through the Surrey Multiple Disadvantage Group to support people with multiple needs 
that include mental ill-health. This ambitious plan includes an acute care model that 
will see the introduction of a street triage unit who will be tasked to emergency 

Page 38

6

https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/your-health/domestic-abuse/professionals/surrey-against-domestic-abuse-strategy
https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/your-health/domestic-abuse/professionals/surrey-against-domestic-abuse-strategy


incidents concerning people from the MEAM group (team will consist of a mental 
health practitioner & police officer(s) in a response vehicle supplied by South East 
Coast Ambulance Service). It is planned that this will be trialled on the West and East 
of the County by the end of this year.

The OPCC has an active part in setting up the new Checkpoint scheme in Surrey, 
which is a project aimed at diverting offenders away from crime.  This will offer 
targeted interventions to tackle the root causes of criminality.  For certain offences, 
prosecution would be deferred on the condition the intervention is completed. The 
project is expected to be fully in place by July 2019. A specialist woman’s navigator 
has been funded by the OPCC and is already in place at the Woking Women’s Centre. 
The OPCC also office has been engaging with the CJLDS (Criminal Justice Liaison & 
Diversion Service) to look at introducing a specialist mental health navigator to work 
with individuals who have multiple disadvantage on the Checkpoint project. 

Progress on dealing with repeat missing people (who often consume a 
disproportionate amount of force time) is included in regular scrutiny meetings. The 
force have put in place a Missing and Vulnerable Adults and Mental Health Delivery 
Group to improve on their work and strategies with adults and OPCC are in regular 
attendance.

1.5 Making Every Pound Count  

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:

 Preserving the front-line
 Eliminate waste and inefficiency
 Collaboration
 Funding
 Effective and efficient Criminal Justice System

Surrey Police monthly financial reports, the Medium Term plan and savings plans are 
regularly review by the PCC and his Chief Finance Officer. 

The PCC has been leading on a project to get assurance around the delivery of the 
Enterprise Resource Programme (ERP) which is being developed in collaboration 
between Surrey Police, Sussex Police and Thames Valley Police.  This system will 
replace many of the current systems used for providing back office services. Work 
around the South East Regional Integration Policing Programme continues, which is 
looking at where the four forces in the South East can jointly collaborate now and in 
future to better deliver services and make savings. Initial work is concentrating on 
harmonising systems and processes across the four areas. 

The OPCC is increasingly working with partners across the Criminal Justice System, 
such as prisons and probation.  This includes projects to reduce re-offending.  The 
Assistant PCC for Victims carries out court visits to observe and feed back to partners.  
The PCC remains chair of the Local Criminal Justice Board, overseeing criminal 
justice performance and efficiency. 

Page 39

6



1.6 A Force Fit for the Future 

The headline actions to achieve this priority are set out in the plan as follows:

 Estates strategy 
 Technology
 Being an attractive employer
 Ability to meet future demands 

The Estates Strategy for Surrey Police is a large, on-going and long-term project.  A 
preferred estates model has been developed and the preferred location for a new 
Headquarters has been identified as in the Dorking to Leatherhead corridor.  Surrey 
Police is leading the search for a suitable site and the PCC has appointed independent 
advisors to assist with the scrutiny of the plans. 

Reports on the Surrey Police ICT strategy are regularly received at performance 
meetings.  The PCC has commissioning independent assurance of the ERP 
programme, alongside Sussex and Thames Valley colleagues. 

To be an attractive employer, Surrey Police need to ensure good recruitment, 
retention and support for the wellbeing of staff. The PCC is very supportive of Surrey 
Police plans to ensure the wellbeing of their staff and the OPCC is represented on the 
Surrey Police Wellbeing Board. The PCC also scrutinises Surrey Police performance 
in relation to recruitment and retention.  

Looking towards future demands, the OPCC is actively involved in the Force-led 
Serious and Organised Crime partnership and receives updates on emerging crimes.  
The recently produced Force Management Statements, as published by HMICFRS, 
also highlighted hidden and emerging crimes – such as Modern Slavery.    

Through involvement with national bodies such as the Association of Police and Crime 
Commissioners (APCC), National Police Chiefs’ Council (NPCC) and the Association 
of Police and Crime Chief Executives (APACE), the OPCC ensures Surrey is playing 
its part in the national agenda.

1.7 Other Commitments in the Plan 

In addition to the six priorities, a number of over-arching commitments are made within 
the plan by the PCC: accountability; partnership; finance; equalities and diversity; and 
the Strategic Policing Requirement. 

The PCC continues to hold his regular scrutiny meeting with the Chief Constable.  
Every other meeting is held in public and every other meeting is a private meeting to 
allow more technical and in-depth scrutiny.  The PCC has also set-up an independent 
review of disclosure following a recent high profile case which had disclosure failings.  

The PCC meets quarterly with the Force’s Professional Standards Department (PSD) 
to ensure it handles complaints and allegations correctly. He also monitors the 
complaints received by his Office and challenges the Chief on points that arise.

Page 40

6



In terms of partnership, the PCC attends the IAG and also Stopwatch, GRT Working 
Group and Taser Scrutiny Group meetings that examine how Surrey Police uses its 
powers when engaging with members of the BME community.

The OPCC Commissioning Strategy refreshed for 2018-20 and published online. This 
drives decision making for remainder of the PCC’s term. 

1.8 Performance Measures

There are no specific measures set out in the plan.  Performance against the plan is 
monitored in detail at the PCC’s weekly performance meeting and webcast every other 
meeting.  The Force Performance Board measures also progress every month.  For 
continuity, attached is the scorecard used for the last two years to measure the plan.   
At the request of the panel, police recorded crime data has also been included. 

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Police and Crime Panel notes the progress made against the Police and 
Crime Plan 2018-2020. 

LEAD/ CONTACT OFFICER: Johanna Burne
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 01483 630200
E-MAIL: SurreyPCC@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 41

6



Appendix A:  Police and Crime Plan Performance Measures

Measures (2016-2020 plan) Baseline
2015/16

2016/17 2017/18 Latest 2018/19

% of public from survey believing that the 
police deal with anti-social behaviour and 
crimes that matter in their area1 

78.7% 75.9% 77.1% 74.9%
(to June 2018)

Positive Outcome Rate2 for crimes against 
vulnerable people (sexual offences, 
domestic abuse, child abuse and hate 
crime)

26.5% 24.5% 19.5% 19.1% 
(to July 2018)

HMIC grade for protecting vulnerable 
people

Inadequate Good Good Next data due 
February 2019

% of victims of crime surveyed3 satisfied 
with police service

81.0% 80.8% 79.4% 79.2% 
(to June 2018)

Average time taken to answer 101 call 4 Not available Not available 1 min 51 secs 1 min 13 secs 
(to June 2018)

% people who feel confident in 
neighbourhood police

91.2% 89.0% 89.6% 88.9% 
(to June 2018)

% residents who say they feel safe walking 
alone after dark1

87.9% 86.9% 84.9% 85.5%

% of force budget spent on front-line 
policing5 

71% 69.8%
(VFM Profile 

2016)

69.9%
(VFM Profile 

2017)

Next data due 
September 2018

For counter terrorism plans in place and 
updated to satisfaction of PCC

Not 
applicable

PCC content 
with plans in 

place

PCC content 
with plans in 

place

PCC currently 
content with 

plans in place – 
although to be 

kept under 
review

1 Source:  Surrey’s Joint Neighbourhood Survey
2 A positive outcome is where a crime has resulted in a: charge/ summons, caution/ reprimand a penalty notice, 
warning, a community resolution of been taken into consideration at court.   The rate is the number of positive 
outcomes in a period as a percentage of crimes recorded in that period (not necessarily relating to the same 
crimes). 
3 This is a defined group of victims (victims of non-domestic violent crime and burglary) as not all crime types are 
suitable for surveying.   Until April 2017 victims of vehicle crime were also included.  
4 Time to answer = time taken for a contact centre operator to speak to the caller.  Changed from previous 60 
second target to give a better overall measure of performance  
5 Source- HMIC annual value for money statement.  Front-line includes visible (patrol, response etc.) and non-
visible (call-handling, public protection investigators etc.).  Consideration is being given to whether there is a 
better indicator for this measure. 

Page 42

6



Appendix B:  Crime Measures Requested by the Panel

 
Levels of  Crime April-July 

2017/18
April-July 
2018/19

Change % change

Serious Sexual 564 677 113 20.0%

Robbery 106 159 +53 +50.0%

Domestic burglary 1573 1272 -301 -19.1%

Vehicle crime 1594 1785 +191 +12.0%

Violence with injury 2572 2513 -59 -2.5%

Total notifiable offences6 25463 25888 425 +1.7%

Positive Outcomes April-July 
2017/18

April-July 
2018/19

Change 2017/18 % 
Outcome 

rate*

2018/19 % 
Outcome 

rate*

Serious Sexual 81 28 -53 14.4% 4.1%

Robbery 16 15 -1 15.1% 9.4%

Domestic burglary 105 103 -2 6.7% 8.1%

Vehicle crime 47 28 -19 2.9% 1.6%

Violence with injury 585 546 -39 22.7% 21.7%

Total notifiable offences 3717 3725 +8 14.6% 14.4%

6 NB this is not a summary of the crimes detailed above but is the total of all offences required to be notified to the 
Home Office.

Page 43

6



This page is intentionally left blank



SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

SURREY POLICE GROUP MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 
2019/20 TO 2022/23

19 September 2018

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to inform the Police & Crime Panel about the Medium Term 
Financial Plan assumptions that are being made for the four year period 2019/20 to 
2022/23.

1) Introduction

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) takes a four year broad look ahead at the range 
of likely financial environments in which Surrey Police is likely to be operating. Two 
versions of the MTFP are provided in this report to demonstrate to members of the Panel 
the probable range of options within which the Commissioner will be making the final 
decisions that will determine the proposals that he will present to the Panel’s Precept 
Setting Meeting in February next year.    

2). Appendix A

The first part of the appendix outlines the increase in the revenue cost base that we are 
expecting over the planning period.  We have added a 2% increase for pay awards for 
each year of the MTFP period, for both police officers and police staff and have used the 
latest Bank of England CPI (Consumer Price Index) quarterly forecast to add in a 2.1% 
increase for non-pay inflation for 2019/20 and a 2% increase for each subsequent year.  
The figures added under the heading Other Avoidable Costs reflect the estimated cost of 
new contractual and statutory commitments which Surrey Police will have to meet in 
2019/20, the principal increases relate to motor insurance £1 million, ill-health retirements 
£1 million, salary increments £1 million and revenue to capital transfers of £1.7 million 
which fund short-life asset replacements for things like vehicles and computer lap tops.  
The Cost of Change estimate in 2019/20 is to provide additional short-term funding to 
enable the proposed saving plan to be achieved and reflects that this will be paid back 
from savings that are generated over the later years of the planning period.  We have 
included an Estate Strategy Net Impact line to cover the work up costs associated with the 
proposal to replace the outdated facilities at Mount Browne with a new more efficient 
Police Headquarters capable of providing the facilities needed to police effectively in the 
21st Century.  And the final provision that we have made is in respect of Service Growth, 
which relates primarily to having to invest in IT to make sure that our IT infrastructure 
remains both, up to date, effective and reliable.   

The second part of Appendix A outlines the funding sources, which we estimate we will 
have access over the planning period.  In this Appendix our estimates are based on a 
scenario which maximises the amount of income that the PCC can potentially raise from 

Page 45

7

Item 7



the Police Precept and assumes that as was the case this year, the Government will 
maintain grant income at a flat cash level.  Under current arrangements, subject to the 
police service as a whole achieving greater efficiency and productivity targets, it is likely 
that the PCC will be able to raise the Police Precept by a maximum of £12 on a Band D 
property for 2019/20 without having to hold a referendum and we have used that figure in 
compiling our projected precept figure.   For future years we have assumed that after 
2019/20 the maximum increase that government will allow in precept income, without the 
holding of a referendum will be 1.99%, and that government grant income will reduce by 
1% per annum from 2020/21 onwards. 

The third part of Appendix A shows a number of Financial Indicators that members may 
find interesting, particularly the line which shows Precept as a % of the Net Budget 
Requirement, demonstrating that Surrey tax payers in the current year pay 55% of the 
cost of Surrey Police to the Government’s contribution of 45%, with that gap growing as 
we progress through the planning period. 

The final part of Appendix A shows the Savings Plan that the Force needs to put in place 
to bridge the gap between the estimated costs of Surrey Police and the sources of 
funding.  To date only £1.6 million of the Savings Plan of £12.2 million has been identified, 
giving rise to a deficit of £10.6 million, which will need to be eliminated by the identification 
of an equivalent amount of saving if a balanced MTFP position is to be achieved.  

3). Appendix B

In terms of Appendix B the same figures have been used as in Appendix A, with the 
exception that the increase in the precept has been limited to an uplift of 1.99% in 
2019/20, instead of applying the £12 maximum precept increase allowed by Government, 
which would represent a 5.07% increase on a Band D Council Tax.  

The practical impact of limiting the precept increase to a 1.99% rise is that the savings 
target which has to be found over the planning period increases by £5.3 million.  As to 
date only £1.6 million of planned savings has been identified this would mean that £15.9 
million of additional savings would have to be identified over the planning period to 
produce a balanced MTFP.

4). Summary
The financial information given in the MTFP should not be considered in the same way as 
the figures given in the annual revenue budget setting papers.  The annual revenue 
budget figures represent a formally approved financial plan which by law the PCC has to 
adhere to.  

The MTFP is a more informal financial planning tool, which enables us to look ahead over 
a longer period of time and make reasonable assumptions about what financial 
environment Surrey Police will be operating in and plan accordingly to minimise any 
disruption that will be experienced over the planning period.  The figures contained in the 
MTFP are not cast in stone and will be altered and adjusted as circumstances change, 
both nationally and locally, as they do not currently for instance take account of the impact 
that the United Kingdom leaving the European Union might have on inflation, interest 
rates and exchange rates, all of which could affect the Surrey Police Group MTFP.  Nor 
have we taken into account possible changes in Government policy, which might for 

Page 46

7



instance increase the amount of money being top sliced from the national police grant that 
is given to individual forces and there is a built in assumption that the current years 
Revenue Budget will not be overspent.  

The two appendices attached to this report while not guaranteed represent what we 
currently believe to be the reasonable parameters within which the Commissioner will 
need to make decisions regarding next year’s formal revenue budget setting process and 
following on from this the precept proposal that he will bring to the Panel next February.

Ian Perkin
Treasurer & CFO

EQUALITIES & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS:  

None arising.

Lead Officer: Ian Perkin, Treasurer & CFO
Telephone Number:                       01483 638724
E-mail:                                             Perkin11584@surrey.pnn.police.uk 

Page 47

7

mailto:Perkin11584@surrey.pnn.police.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A
Medium Term Financial Forecast Q2

£12 Precept 2 Year 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
REVENUE COST BASE £m £m £m £m £m
Base budget 213.0 214.6 226.6 226.8 230.0
Pay Inflation 3.5 3.5 3.7 3.6 3.7
Price Inflation 0.4 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8
Other Unavoidable Costs 0.0 4.7 1.7 1.4 1.4
Cost of Change net 0.0 2.7 (2.4) (0.1) (0.9)
Estate Strategy Net Impact 0.3 1.7 0.1 0.6 3.0
Service Growth 2.7 (0.2) 0.4 0.0 (0.0)
Total Cost Increases 7.0 13.2 4.2 6.3 8.0
Gross Budget Requirement 220.0 227.9 230.8 233.1 238.0
Annual Savings Requirement (5.3) (1.3) (4.0) (3.1) (3.8)
Total Gross Budget 214.6 226.6 226.8 230.0 234.1

FUNDING 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2022/23
£m £m £m £m £m

Home Office Grant 90.1 90.1 89.2 88.3 87.4
Council Tax Support Grant 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.1
General Reserves 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0
Specific Reserves -

Estate Strategy (2.4) 0.1 0.1 0.6 2.0
Cost of Change (1.5) 1.6 0.0 0.0 0.0

Surplus/(deficit) on Council Tax Collection Fund 1.5
Base precept 110.8 117.7 124.8 128.3 131.9
Taxbase Improvement 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1
Precept increase 6.0 6.0 2.5 2.6 2.6
Total Funding 214.6 226.6 226.8 230.0 234.1

Financial Indicators
Funding Change 1.7 11.9 0.2 3.2 4.1
Cost Increase as % of base 3.3% 6.2% 1.9% 2.8% 3.5%
Total Budget Change 1.6 11.9 0.2 3.2 4.1
Total Budget Change 0.8% 5.5% 0.1% 1.4% 1.8%
Band D £ 236.57 248.57 253.52 258.56 263.71
Band D Net precept increase % 5.34% 5.07% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%
Precept Funding increase % 6.2% 6.0% 2.8% 2.8% 2.8%
Total Precept Receipt 117.7 124.8 128.3 131.9 135.6
Precept as % of Net Budget Requirement 55% 55% 57% 57% 58%
Grant as % of budget 45% 45% 43% 43% 42%
Net Budget Requirement 215.5 225.7 226.7 229.4 232.1
Net budget requirement movement % 2.6% 4.7% 0.5% 1.2% 1.2%

Savings Plan 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2020/22
£m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Change Programmes:
Savings Achieved Ahead of Schedule (0.3) 
Specialist Crime (2.1) (1.0) (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) 
Operations (0.5) (0.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Contact & Deployment (0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
People Services (0.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Finance & Services (0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Corporate Services (0.4) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
ICT (0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Local Policing (1.7) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Other Saving Initiatives 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total of Strategic Change Programme Savings: (5.3) (1.3) (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) 
Annual Savings Requirement (5.3) (1.3) (4.0) (3.1) (3.8)

In Year Surplus/Deficit 0.0 0.0 (3.9) (3.0) (3.7)

Cumulative Surplus/Deficit 0.0 0.0 (3.9) (6.9) (10.6)

September-2018

Planned 
savings 
£1.6m

4 Year Future 
Savings 
Target 
£12.2m

Budget 
Deficit 
£10.6m

Page 49

7



Appendix B

Medium Term Financial Forecast Q2
£12 Precept 1 Year 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

REVENUE COST BASE £m £m £m £m £m
Base budget 213.0 214.6 224.2 223.0 226.1
Pay Inflation 3.5 3.5 3.7 3.6 3.7
Price Inflation 0.4 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8
Other Unavoidable Costs 0.0 4.7 1.7 1.4 1.4
Cost of Change net 0.0 2.7 (2.4) (0.1) (0.9)
Estate Strategy Net Impact 0.3 1.7 0.1 0.6 3.0
Service Growth 2.7 (0.2) 0.4 0.0 (0.0)
Total Cost Increases 7.0 13.3 4.3 6.3 8.0
Gross Budget Requirement 220.0 227.9 228.4 229.3 234.1
Annual Savings Requirement (5.3) (3.7) (5.4) (3.2) (5.2)
Total Gross Budget 214.6 224.2 223.0 226.1 228.8

FUNDING 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2022/23
£m £m £m £m £m

Home Office Grant 90.1 90.1 89.2 88.3 87.4
Council Tax Support Grant 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.1
General Reserves 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0
Specific Reserves -

Estate Strategy (2.4) 1.4 0.1 0.6 0.7
Cost of Change (1.5) 1.6 0.0 0.0 0.0

Surplus/(deficit) on Council Tax Collection Fund 1.5
Base precept 110.8 117.7 121.1 124.5 128.0
Taxbase Improvement 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Precept increase 6.0 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.6
Total Funding 214.6 224.2 223.0 226.1 228.8

Financial Indicators
Funding Change 1.7 9.5 (1.2) 3.1 2.7
Cost Increase as % of base 3.3% 6.2% 1.9% 2.8% 3.5%
Total Budget Change 1.6 9.5 (1.2) 3.1 2.7
Total Budget Change 0.8% 4.4% -0.5% 1.4% 1.2%
Band D £ 236.57 241.28 246.08 250.98 255.97
Band D Net precept increase % 5.34% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%
Precept Funding increase % 6.2% 2.8% 2.8% 2.8% 2.8%
Total Precept Receipt 117.7 121.1 124.5 128.0 131.6
Precept as % of Net Budget Requirement 55% 55% 56% 57% 58%
Grant as % of budget 45% 45% 44% 43% 42%
Net Budget Requirement 215.5 222.0 222.9 225.5 228.1
Net budget requirement movement % 2.6% 3.0% 0.4% 1.2% 1.2%

Savings Plan 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2020/22
£m £m £m £m £m

Strategic Change Programmes:
Savings Achieved Ahead of Schedule (0.3) 
Specialist Crime (2.1) (1.0) (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) 
Operations (0.5) (0.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Contact & Deployment (0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
People Services (0.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Finance & Services (0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Corporate Services (0.4) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
ICT (0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Local Policing (1.7) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Other Saving Initiatives 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total of Strategic Change Programme Savings: (5.3) (1.3) (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) 
Annual Savings Requirement (5.3) (3.7) (5.4) (3.2) (5.2)

In Year Surplus/Deficit 0.0 (2.4) (5.3) (3.1) (5.1)

Cumulative Surplus/Deficit 0.0 (2.4) (7.7) (10.8) (15.9)

September-2018

Planned 
savings 
£1.6m

4 Year Future 
Savings 

Target £17.5m

Budget 
Deficit 
£15.9m

Page 50

7



SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

POLICE COMPLAINTS REFORM

19 September 2018

SUMMARY

This report aims to outline the changes to the complaints process resulting from the 
Policing & Crime Act 2017. The report attempts to set a timetable for these changes to 
be implemented and what the impact is likely to be for the Surrey Police and Crime 
Panel.

BACKGROUND

The Policing & Crime Act 2017 introduced a significant change to the Police 
Complaints system, building on the previous years’ reforms both of the 
complaints/conduct system, and of police governance in the form of PCCs.

The intention is that PCCs should take over the appellate function currently carried out 
by Forces’ PSDs (Professional Standards Departments) for current ‘local resolution’ 
level complaints. Local resolution means dealing with complaints against the police at 
a local level – for example, through the involvement of an inspector at a police station. 
The inspector can talk with the complainant so they understand what the complaint is 
about and take any appropriate action to put things right. The inspector may also want 
to take the opportunity to explain what has happened from the perspective of the 
police officer involved.

The present arrangements are that if someone is unhappy with the outcome of their 
complaint, and that matter is not defined as a serious one under the legislation, then 
they have a right of appeal back to the Force.  This is perceived, understandably, as 
not being sufficiently independent and the Government believed it did not give the 
public confidence in complaints handling or the Police Service in general.  Therefore, 
PCCs will be obliged to take on this appeal function (in future to be known as 
‘reviews’): the intention is that it will give greater independence, allow PCCs to have 
more effective oversight and scrutiny of the actions of the Force, and provide 
increased public confidence. However, the definition of “local resolution” as we 
currently know it will not be applicable moving forward, as the rules around recording 
complaints will change and PCCs will therefore have the ability to handle 
appeals/reviews of all but the most serious cases.  In other words, the workload for 
PCCs in future is likely to be greater than the current workload for Force colleagues.

There is also the option, based on a combination of other PCCs’ work and a desire on 
the part of the Government to allow a localised approach to PCC involvement in the 
wider complaints process, for various other functions of Forces’ PSDs to be taken on 
by PCCs.  PCCs could choose to be the recording body for complaints or also attempt 

Page 51

8

Item 8



to resolve very low level matters outside of the formal processes.  Additionally, PCCs 
will have the discretion to take responsibility for keeping complainants updated and 
providing the final outcome.  Surrey’s PCC has indicated he does not intend to take on 
these wider additional responsibilities, but will be required to take on the appeal/review 
function.

NEW COMPLAINTS HANDLING PROCESS AND OPTIONS
The below is taken from a Home Office presentation in 2017, and sets out the new 
streamlined process for handling complaints.

Again, taken from the Home Office presentation, below is the simplified version of the 
three models PCCs could adopt.

Page 52

8



Model 1
Model 1 is the minimum requirement of all PCCs.  It will require PCCs to receive 
appeals (to be known as reviews) from the public, consider whether the Force took 
proportionate action, and then contact the complainant with the outcome.  This role is 
currently discharged by PSD. 

Where the PCC feels that either the complaint was not handled correctly, or the 
outcome was not appropriate, then recommendations can be made that the Force 
takes action to rectify this. However, it is important to note that the PCC has no power 
to direct that remedial action take place, as the Chief Constable retains operational 
control.  There is the possibility that an officer could refuse to take the action 
requested, which could lead to reputational issues for the PCC (in terms of looking 
ineffective/weak) and a potential disagreement with PSD staff and/or the Chief 
Constable.

This option would be the least disruptive and least costly. Based on the assumption 
that an equivalent appropriate decision maker is appointed by the PCC, with expert 
knowledge provided from the existing team, and with an additional member of staff to 
provide administrative support, these staff could, potentially, be accommodated in the 
existing OPCC building. This would require a budgetary uplift.

Model 1 would also provide the cleanest separation of functions to preserve the PCC’s 
‘hold to account’ function.  The more involved the PCC is with operational complaints 
handling, the more difficult it is to hold the Force to account for their actions.  The PCC 
will appear more independent, in terms of managing appeals and ensuring that the 
Chief Constable carries out their role, in the eyes of the public.

However, this is the least innovative and radical approach to taking on board the 
Government’s desire for reform of the complaints system, and gives the PCC the least 
leverage in improving the service to members of the public.  It also means they will 
have least oversight and knowledge of the issues that the public are complaining 
about, as the Force will still be receiving complaints directly.  This element would be 
moderated however by the increased level of performance monitoring that has been 
agreed.

These changes are set to come into effect in Spring of 2019.

Model 2
This will also incorporate the elements of Model 1, but with the additional 
responsibilities of receiving complaints, contacting complainants, and then either 
recording the matter formally under the Police Reform Act (PRA) 2002, or attempting 
to informally resolve the issue for the complainant.

Model 2 would give the PCC a complete oversight of any dissatisfaction being raised 
by Surrey’s residents in respect of Surrey Police, allowing a greater focus on key 
issues and potentially a greater ability to hold the Chief Constable to account. 

Page 53

8



However, this model would require a larger additional cost for the OPCC, including 
staffing costs and accommodation.  In terms of the public perception, the PCC would 
potentially suffer from the same issue the police currently does: by being the same 
body that receives and records a complaint, and then handles any subsequent 
appeal/review, it could give rise to the belief that it was not independent and fair.  

In practical terms, the administration of informally resolving complaints would pose 
some issues.  As they tend to be for the lowest level issues (lack of an update, minor 
incivility, and so on) they are best handled directly by frontline staff, potentially the 
individual being complained about or their supervisor. Moreover, the quicker they are 
enacted the better for the complainant and the more likely they are to be accepted and 
resolved.

Additionally, if the OPCC takes responsibility for the initial handling of complaints, then 
it is likely that members of the public will assume that the OPCC owns the entire 
system.  They would therefore understandably come to the OPCC for updates, which 
could lead to the OPCC assuming the work of Model 3 without the resourcing.  It has 
also been observed in other Force areas that operate this system, such as 
Hertfordshire, that officers have a tendency to direct people to make a complaint 
directly to the OPCC, rather than attempt to resolve the matter immediately 
themselves.

Model 3
This incorporates Models 1 and 2, and gives the OPCC the additional responsibility for 
keeping the complainant updated throughout, and providing the outcome letter.

Model 3 would give the PCC a complete oversight of any dissatisfaction being raised 
by Surrey’s residents in respect of Surrey Police, allowing a greater focus on key 
issues and potentially a greater ability to hold the Chief Constable to account.  It would 
provide greater interaction with the public, which could potentially increase the 
OPCC/PCC’s profile.  

However, there would be a significant increasing in staffing and accommodation 
required for recording initial handling decisions, updates and outcome letters away 
from those managing appeals.  In terms of the public perception, the OPCC would 
more likely suffer from the same issue that the Police does: to be the same body that 
receives and records a complaint, and then keeps the individual updated, and then 
goes on to handle any appeal, would give rise to the belief that the appeal process 
was not independent and fair.  The public would regard this as a conflict of interest.

As with Model 2, Model 3 would present some practical difficulties in the OPCC having 
to administer an operational process over which it had no control.

Page 54

8



MODEL FOR SURREY 
The Surrey Commissioner, along with his neighbouring Commissioners (Sussex, Kent, 
Hampshire and Thames Valley), has decided to adopt Model 1. This will ensure that 
there will be an equitable approach across the region, which is important in terms of 
collaboration. However, although the regions Commissioners have all decided to adopt 
the same Model, the Act provides scope for PCCs to adapt the Model to suit their own 
local needs. Consequently, delivery of that Model is different in almost every case. For 
instance, Hampshire have considered the appointment of a “people’s panel” to review 
the decision making process of the Force, whereas Sussex are looking to provide the 
review process within its existing Office establishment.  In spite of Surrey’s 
encouragement for PCCs to work collaboratively when taking on new responsibilities 
for appeals, there was no appetite to do so from regional colleagues. 

In Surrey, the Commissioner is likely to adopt a Model that replicates one that has 
already been successfully delivered in Wiltshire over the last five years. This will see 
the appointment of a “Complaint’s Ombudsman” type role, perhaps a retired senior 
police officer with relevant experience and skills, who will, with administrative support 
from the Office, carry out the review function currently carried out by the Head of PSD.

EXPECTED IMAPACT ON OPCC
To provide a basis for all further assumptions, information was gathered on the 
numbers of complaints made (2016/17); how they were handled; and whether they 
were appealed, and the amount of contact required.  

 In 2016/17 Surrey Police’s PSD recorded 483 complaints, approximately 40 
complaints a month. These complaints were then broken down into 1,393 
allegations, approximately 116 a month. 618 of these allegations were locally 
resolved.

Page 55

8



 42 of these locally resolved complaints were appealed. However, while it may 
appear like this is a relatively small number (just 6.8% of all allegations locally 
resolved), it should be remembered that this figure is dependent on the number 
of complaints handled by way of local resolutions. For example, in Q3 2016/17 
47% of complaints were locally resolved, but in Q2 2014/15 this figure was as 
low as 13%. It follows that the more local resolutions there are, the more local 
resolution appeals/reviews there will be. Furthermore, with the definition of 
“local resolution” set to be withdrawn, some care should be taken when using 
these figures to make assumptions.

 The number of complaints and allegations handled by Surrey Police has 
remained fairly static, or slightly reduced, over the last four years. However, if 
the intention of the Act is successful and the changes lead to greater 
confidence in the complaints system, brought about by the inclusion of PCCs, it 
is possible there will be an increase in the number of complaints and appeals.

 As shown, although the number of complaints and allegations received by 
Surrey Police appears to be slowly reducing, it is interesting to note that Surrey 
Police records more allegations per 1,000 employees than its most similar 
forces.  Furthermore, Surrey Police is 8th nationally on the number of allegations 
it records per 1,000 employees. Colleagues in PSD have informed the PCC that 
this is because they are meticulous in recording every allegation separately and 
not clumping complaints and allegations together.

Page 56

8



The following points need to be considered:
 The Policing and Crime Act is implicit in its intention that every complaint should 

be recorded. However, there are a significant number of complaints, or 
expressions of dissatisfaction, (458) that are not formally recorded but are dealt 
with by way of service recovery by the PSD front of house triage team. Indeed, 
this number is likely to be far higher, with many “complaints” taken by the 
Contact Centre and resolved there or by referral to the relevant local teams 
without going near PSD.

 There is, as yet, a lack of clarity on processes and implementation. The Home 
Office have tentatively suggested that the Act will be enforced by April 2019, but 
no concrete date has been set. Furthermore, the regulations required to provide 
clarity on the Act, including amendments to existing legislation, have also yet to 
be finalised. It is hoped that this will be ready in the coming months. 

 There is a lack of detail on what happens should an appeal/review be upheld, 
and any work that would arise out of this. The PCC will only be able to make 
recommendations to the Chief Constable that a particular course is followed. In 
theory, therefore, the complainants appeal/review has been devalued as Surrey 
Police will be under no obligation to follow the PCCs recommendation. It is 
important, in terms of public credibility and confidence that Surrey Police and 
the PCC work hard to ensure these situations are avoided.

In terms of cost for the OPCC, the current level of staffing in Surrey Professional 
Standards Department (PSD), has been used to give an estimate.   Considerations for 
costs and resources area as follows: 

 PSD is led by a Detective Superintendent. He is supported by a Detective Chief 
Inspector. Below them are three Detective Inspectors, three Detective 
Sergeants, three Detective Constables and three Constables. They are 
supported by 24 civilian staff. Allowing for vacancies and job share, this 
accounts to an establishment of 37.33 full-time equivalent (FTE) posts, costing 
approximately £1.8m. 

 Currently, local resolution appeals are handled by the Head of Department 
Legislatively, decision making under complaints (i.e. the Appropriate Authority 
decision) can only be delegated down to a Chief Inspector. It is unlikely that 
members of the public will be satisfied by anyone below that rank or seniority 
making a decision about their review.

 The current Head of Surrey PSD estimates that it takes him roughly 1.5 days a 
week to handle the appeals he currently has. Assuming there is a slight 
increase in the number of reviews following their appointment, and bearing in 
mind it will take them some time to become fully accustomed to the work, it 
would be fair to assume this post would require someone 2.5 days a week as a 
minimum. 

 There will need to be specific administrative support and analytical capability 
provision allocated. Complainants will expect to talk to someone in the OPCC 
about their complaint and the decision maker and the PCC will need to briefed 
and updated by someone with expert knowledge.

 Recording methods currently employed by the PCCs Office will not be sufficient 
for the effective management of complaints in the future, regardless of what 
Model is chosen. Access, at some level, will need to be given to Centurion, the 

Page 57

8



complaints handling system used by most police forces, and possibly Niche as 
well, the incident reporting mechanism. 

 Consideration will also need to be given to whether it is possible to migrate 
information held on the OPCC’s existing excel based complaints recording 
system onto the Surrey Police complaints system, Centurion, and whether the 
OPCC and Surrey Police can use the same Centurion system or whether they 
will need separate ones.

In summary, the changes described in this paper represent new and additional 
responsibilities for the PCC/OPCC and will require additional resources.   The 
resources required will be reflected in the budget for the OPCC for 2019/20 which will 
be received by the panel in February 2019.   It is the PCC’s firm expectation that any 
increase in budget for the OPCC will be balanced with a commensurate reduction in 
budget for Surrey Police PSD. 

TIMETABLE
The implementation of the changes is still not fully known. Although the Act has been 
passed and some details have emerged, there remains a lack of clarity over a number 
of issues and when the Act will be enforced. The latest estimate is that it will come in 
to place in April 2019. Officers from the OPCC have met with Surrey Police’s Change 
Delivery team to ensure this deadline is met.

IMPACT ON THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
The legislation is clear that complainants will not be entitled to appeal the decision of 
the PCC in relation to their review to the Police and Crime Panel. This would, in effect, 
be an appeal of an appeal and would, consequently, be an abuse of the complaints 
system. This will not prevent people from attempting it, however, and the PCP should 
be prepared for an uptake in people wishing to appeal a review decision to the PCP. 
The PCP members and officers will need to be clear and consistent on its approach 
and explain that it is only able to handle complaints that relate directly to the actions of 
the Police and Crime Commissioner. Should complainants remain dissatisfied with 
their review, they will have the option to explore judicial review, in much the same way 
they have now.

Nonetheless, the PCP might like to consider how it scrutinises the process and 
performance of the PCC in how he manages the reviews of complaints. Currently the 
PCC dip-checks PSD files and meets with the Head and/or Deputy Head of PSD every 
quarter to consider the performance in the last quarter. Consideration is also given to 
appeals reviewed by the Independent Office for Police Conduct at these meetings. 
The PCP might like to consider doing something similar, although these will be 
challenges to overcome in achieving this, such as: GDPR regulations; Vetting; and 
software requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Police and Crime Panel notes the changes to the police complaints system 
and considers how it wishes to scrutinise the OPCC in fulfilling the new duties. 

Page 58

8



LEAD/ CONTACT OFFICER: Sam Meyer
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 01483 630200
E-MAIL: SurreyPCC@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 59

8



This page is intentionally left blank



SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

FEEDBACK ON PERFORMANCE MEETINGS

19 September 2018

INTRODUCTION
One of the main responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) is 
to hold the Chief Constable to account for delivery of the Police and Crime Plan.  
David Munro has set up a governance framework to discharge this duty.  The 
main part of this framework is to hold six-weekly Performance Meetings where 
the Chief Constable reports on progress against the Police & Crime Plan and 
other strategic issues.  This is supplemented by workshops and one to one 
discussions between the PCC and Chief Constable when required.

Every other performance meeting is webcast for the public and partners to view.  
The PCC chairs the meeting which is also attended by the Chief Executive and 
Treasurer from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC). Other 
members of staff from the OPCC attend as required, depending on the agenda.  
The Chief Constable attends along with the Deputy Chief Constable and other 
force staff as required. 

This report provides an update on the meetings that have been held and what 
has been discussed in order to demonstrate that arrangements for good 
governance and scrutiny are in place.    

PERFORMANCE MEETINGS
Since the last report on performance meetings to the panel, one Performance 
Meeting has been held – July 2018.     

10 July 2018 – Private Meeting

Agenda items were:

 Performance report
 Finance report 
 Medium Term Financial Plan 
 Public protection capability and capacity
 Cyber crime unit protect and prevent overview
 Risk management
 Capital programme 2018/18
 Reserves

Page 61

9

Item 9



Under the performance report, staffing issues were discussed, including the 
need to recruit more detectives and the reduced unplanned leaver level for police 
officers.  Referrals to occupational health had increased which was felt to be 
positive as more staff are accessing help.  

In terms of interaction with the public, the Chief Constable reported a reduced 
level of complaints and a better ability for Surrey Police to resolve issues in the 
first instance.  In addition, stop and search outcome rates had improved.   Public 
confidence had also improved with Surrey currently showing the highest level of 
confidence in England and Wales, as measured by an independent national 
survey.  The performance in answering the 101 number continues to improve. 

In terms of crime and incidents, the Chief Constable reported significant 
reductions in burglary across the county, including a 40% reduction in the North 
of the county.   High harm offences (sexual offences, child abuse, domestic 
abuse) were seeing signs of starting to plateau.  Vehicle crime is currently rising 
and Surrey Police are looking at a preventative strategy.   Officers are now 
recording more problem solving activity.  Missing people continued to be a draw 
on police resources.

The finance report showed a small forecast overspend.   In particular there was 
non-pay overspend, including in IT.   The reliability of the budget forecasts were 
discussed and it was felt that information was better than it was in the past.  
However, the PCC and Chief Finance Officer asked for more priority to be given 
to audit recommendations made for the finance department around the 
implementation of new software.  The savings plan was on track to be met. 

The medium term financial plan had been updated to include known projects 
such as estates and IT.  Two scenarios were presented, depending on levels of 
council tax precept.  There was a budget deficit in both scenarios.  There is a 
need to create capacity to save more money in 2023/24 to generate more 
reserves for this year.  The estates project and planned new Headquarters site 
will significantly affect the savings requirement.   Interest rate risks and general 
economic risks are a concern.

Over the last few years Surrey Police has invested significant resources into the 
Public Protection Unit, which deals with high harm offences such as domestic 
abuse and sexual offences.  With increases in recorded high harm offences and 
a shortage of detectives in the force, the OPCC had asked for an update on the 
capability and capacity of this unit.   The Assistant Chief Constable updated that 
there was still gap in detective constables which was being filled by police 
constables with appropriate experience.   As well as an increase in offence 
numbers, the Chief Constable reported that cases were taking longer to 
investigate, particularly due to issues of disclosure. 

An update was provided on the Cyber Crime Unit (CCU).  The CCU has now 
created a digital safeguarding capability which is delivered to high risk victims of 
domestic abuse, harassment, and stalking cases to protect them from being 

Page 62

9



targeted online.  Surrey Police are getting good feedback from this new capability.  
The PCC asked whether Surrey Police are winning the war against Cyber Crime. 
The Chief’s view was that it is impossible to say we are, as there are 1.8million 
unrecorded cybercrime incidents that Police do not hear about.  The only way 
forward in tackling cybercrime is to prevent and prepare. Surrey Police are 
planning a digital week with prevention and protection roadshows across the 
county.

A short update was provided on the formal process for overseeing, raising and 
managing risk.  Surrey Police are improving their ability to learn from incidents 
by reviewing what they do currently and what other forces do nationally.

The force finance officer presented the consolidated capital programme for 
2018-19, along with the schemes that have requested approval to carry forward 
unspent budget from 2017-18.   In addition, the reserves were discussed, with 
Surrey currently having the third lowest level of reserves for police forces in 
England and Wales. 

Under any other business, unauthorised encampments and the estates strategy 
were discussed. 

RECOMMENDATION

That the Police and Crime Panel note the update on the PCC’s Performance 
Meetings. 

LEAD/ CONTACT OFFICER:  Johanna Burne
TELEPHONE NUMBER:  01483 630200
E-MAIL: SurreyPCC@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 63

9



This page is intentionally left blank



SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

DISCLOSURE

19 September 2018

INTRODUCTION

Disclosure is the release of material gathered during a police investigation that is not 
relied upon by the prosecution but which may be relevant to the case. The prosecution 
team and police have a duty to review this unused material and determine whether 
there's anything in it that undermines their case or supports the defence. 

Over the last year there have been several high profile cases nationally where 
disclosure hasn’t been carried out correctly.  These have received national media 
interest and have significant impact on those individuals concerned – both the accused 
and alleged victims. 

Over the last six months, the police service and the Crown Prosecution Service have 
been looking in depth at disclosure failings and, earlier in the year, the Director for 
Public Prosecutions led a seminar with police chiefs and the judiciary to discuss why 
they are happening and what we need to do across the system to improve. 

Surrey Chief Constable Nick Ephgrave is the national police chief officer lead for 
disclosure.  He has recognised that there are national issues with disclosure of 
information and has said: “We have had a cultural problem with disclosure where it is 
too often seen by police officers as a thing to be done at the end of an investigation - 
becoming subsequent to rather than integral to the investigation. Changing this mind-
set is an immediate challenge for us.”

The development of technology and social media in particular has increased the 
complexity of investigations.  Police need to be able to consider phones, tablets, 
computers and social media accounts.  For a typical investigation this has been 
estimated at being the equivalent of around 30,000 pages of paper. 

Nationally, actions are being taken to improve disclosure. The College of Policing is 
reviewing what is needed from training and guidance to make it effective and up to 
date on disclosure.   In addition, every force is to have a chief officer responsible for 
disclosure to lead improvements and ensure supervisors and managers understand 
and fulfil their responsibilities. This must be backed up by robust oversight to check 
forces are complying with agreed standards including regular dip sampling to test 
cases.

Page 65

10

Item 10



SCRUTINY 

The PCC has recognised that disclosure has been a problem for Surrey, as it has 
been for police forces nationally.   He has scrutinised the Chief Constable on actions 
being taken to improve disclosure within Surrey.   A copy of the most recent scrutiny 
report is attached at Appendix A.  The PCC will be following up on this topic at his 
September scrutiny meeting.  This report shows that there is an action plan in place 
with senior officer oversight. 

In August 2018, the case against Kenneth (Jonathan) King was dismissed with the 
judge listing a series of disclosure failings.  The investigation of this case took place 
before the force action plan was put in place.  However, there were serious failings 
and the case received significant media attention and may have affected public 
confidence in police investigations and prosecutions. 

Given the scale of disclosure failings in the case, the impact on the individuals 
concerned and the public interest, the PCC has announced that there will be an 
independent review into this case so that lessons can be learned.  The PCC and Chief 
Constable will jointly commission the review.  At the time of writing this report, the 
OPCC was working with Surrey Police to identify a team or organisation with sufficient 
skills and independence to carry out the review.   Timescales for the review are 
expected to be short, around 6 months, so that recommendations made can be fed 
into the action plans for improving disclosure. 

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Police and Crime Panel notes the current scrutiny the PCC is providing on the 
subject of disclosure. 

LEAD/ CONTACT OFFICER: Johanna Burne
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 01483 630200
E-MAIL: SurreyPCC@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 66

10



Disclosure

Required for: OPCC Performance Meeting, 22 March 2018

Security Classification: OFFICIAL
Handling information if required:
Suitable for publication: Yes

Title: Disclosure 

Version: V1.0

Purpose: To provide the OPCC with an update on work and 
actions relating to disclosure.

ACPO / Strategic Lead: ACC Nev Kemp

National Decision Model compliance: Yes 

Date created: 28.02.18

Date to be reviewed:

AUTHOR:
Name: Supt Clive Davies / Insp Gail McCoo

Job Title: Criminal Justice 

Telephone number: 101

Email address:
clive.davies@surrey.pnn.police.uk
gail.mccoo@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Page 67

10

mailto:clive.davies@surrey.pnn.police.uk
mailto:gail.mccoo@surrey.pnn.police.uk


1. Background
1.1. In July 2017, a joint report between Her Majesty’s Crown Prosecution Services Inspectorate  

(HMCPSI) and Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services 
(HMICFRS) entitled “Making it Fair” was published and highlighted a number of failings by the 
police service and CPS in respect of disclosure compliance with unused material.  It described 
inadequacies between the two partners and recognised that this had a significant impact on cases 
being discontinued at court. “Making it Fair” coincided with a report written by Richard Horwell QC 
about the 1988 murder of Lynette White investigated by South Wales Police, entitled the 
Mouncher Investigation Report. In this, he described his findings as the “worst miscarriage of 
justice in our criminal justice system” and an “…embarrassment on a national scale”.  Horwell 
concluded early on in his review that there was no malice or ill will on the part of the police 
investigators, rather a lack of direction, supervision, experience, training and preparation. Both 
reports make a number of recommendations.

1.2. On the 19 January 2018, Surrey Police became the focus of adverse attention when the case 
involving a young man accused of rape, in an incident dating back to July 2015, was abandoned 
at Guildford Crown Court. The prosecution reached the decision to formally offer no evidence and 
the media linked this to disclosure concerns.    

1.3. The National Police Chief’s Council (NPCC), College of Policing and Crown Prosecution Service 
(CPS) have co-authored a paper entitled the National Disclosure Improvement Plan.  This plan 
describes the actions that must be undertaken to make the necessary improvements. It is divided 
into five themes, namely capacity, capability, leadership, governance and partnership. It is 
available online via the following link:  
https://www.cps.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/publications/National-Disclosure-
Improvement-Plan-January-2018.pdf  

2. Action Taken
2.1. As a result of the above, a fast-time review of all 36 current post-charge Rape and Serious Sexual 

Offences (RASSO) cases is underway in the force to ensure disclosure compliance and mitigate 
any foreseeable risks. This review is expected to conclude on the 9 March. To date the findings 
have been generally positive in terms of appropriate disclosure and competent investigations, 
however a number of themes have nevertheless been identified including securing digital 
evidence, a lack of appropriate training and understanding of disclosure, and poor communication 
with the CPS.

2.2. In order to put in place immediate actions, manage this review, capture learning, and ensure 
appropriate ownership of actions, Surrey Police established a RASSO Disclosure Working Group 
under the direction of Det. Ch. Supt Savell. 

2.3. An overarching Disclosure Task and Finish Group has been set up, chaired by Assistant Chief 
Constable Kemp as strategic force champion, supported by Supt Davies as tactical lead. The 
findings of the RASSO group are feeding into this, and it is attended by key individuals from 
across the force. Under this group, a comprehensive force action plan has been developed which 
draws from the national plan and uses the same five themes. It has been separated into volume 
crime, serious and specialist crime, and RASSO crime, and then broken down into short, medium 
and long term actions.

2.4. Some key points from the plan include:
2.4.1. Increased training
2.4.2. Process mapping of current activity to understand the gaps and the resourcing impact of    

improved disclosure work
2.4.3. Scoping technological efficiencies
2.4.4. Updating and improving force guidance and online resources
2.4.5. Improvements on the capture and use of digital media
2.4.6. Review of the contribution made by the force’s Quality Assurance teams on disclosure
2.4.7. Enhanced supervisor oversight
2.4.8. Identification of team Champions and expert Single Point of Contacts (SPOCs)
2.4.9. Joint work with CPS to improve communication

Page 68

10

https://www.cps.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/publications/National-Disclosure-Improvement-Plan-January-2018.pdf
https://www.cps.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/publications/National-Disclosure-Improvement-Plan-January-2018.pdf


The following are some noteworthy examples of activity from the plan: 

2.5. On the 26 February, Chief Constable Ephgrave held two seminars to assembled audiences 
totalling over 200 police officers and staff of all ranks and grades, highlighting the importance of 
disclosure, and introducing the national and local plan.  This day was supported by Nigel 
Pilkington, Deputy Chief Crown Prosecutor for the South East Region. Positive feedback has 
been received from attendees, and Sussex Police are now planning to deliver a similar event in 
their force area. 

2.6. One of the main recommendations in both “Making it Fair” and the Mouncher Report centres on 
improved working relationships and communication between the CPS and the police service. 
Consequently the inaugural regional Police and CPS Disclosure meeting was held in February, 
including strategic and tactical leads from the region’s three police forces and the CPS.

2.7. Improved training for investigating staff is essential.  The force has reviewed its current training 
and is arranging a number of day-long training events to train approximately a quarter of our 
officers in March, with more planned for April. In addition, probationer training is now being 
extended and will include disclosure for all new police officers.  

2.8. Communication evidence is a challenge when considering the increased use of smart phones and 
computers over recent years, and social media. This is captured not only in the force’s plan, but 
also in the Digital Media Investigation Working Group Plan, which feeds into the overarching 
disclosure group. Plans are in place to increase the number of officers able to undertake fast-time 
triaging of devices capable of storing electronic information.

2.9. Officers have already volunteered to become Disclosure Champions.  They will receive enhanced 
training and it is envisaged that there will be at least one such officer on every team. They will 
support their immediate colleagues and mentor others.  Additionally, SPOCs have been identified 
at DI and DS level, who will be ‘expert’ and provide advice, support and direction.

3. Conclusion
3.1. In conclusion, Surrey Police has enthusiastically responded to the concerns which have rightly 

been raised in relation to disclosure, with a thorough action plan in place which is being driven at 
senior levels, with buy-in and involvement throughout the organisation.

4. Decision[s] Required
4.1. None, this paper is for information only.

Page 69

10



This page is intentionally left blank



         
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

COMMISSIONER’S QUESTION TIME

19 September 2018

SUMMARY

At the 8 December 2016 Police and Crime Panel meeting it was unanimously agreed 
for an item called ‘Commissioners Question Time’ to be included as a standing item 
to each Panel meeting agenda. The purpose of this item is for Police and Crime 
Panel Members to raise any issues or queries concerning crime and policing in 
Surrey with the Commissioner and also to provide an opportunity to ask further 
questions (for example questions relating to previous agenda items or urgent matters 
not included on the agenda). Questions must focus on strategic issues within the 
Commissioners remit, questions regarding operational issues will be deemed 
inappropriate.  

RECOMMENDATIONS

For the Police and Crime Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning Crime and 
Policing in Surrey with the Commissioner. 

LEAD OFFICER: Angela Guest, Democratic Services Officer, Surrey 
County Council

TELEPHONE 
NUMBER:

020 8541 9075

E-MAIL: angela.guest@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 71

11

Item 11

mailto:angela.guest@surreycc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



         
SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME

19 September 2018

SUMMARY

The updated Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work Programme are 
presented at each meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.  The Recommendations 
Tracker lists all the information requested by the Panel at previous meetings.  That 
information is contained in the annex to the tracker.  The Work Programme is for 
Panel Members to discuss the details of items they wish to see at future meetings 
and the most relevant time to receive the reports. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

For the Police and Crime Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning the 
information received on the Tracker and to discuss the Work Programme to ensure 
timeliness of reports to future meetings. 

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Recommendations Tracker including Annex to Tracker
Appendix 2: Forward Work Programme

LLEAD OFFICER: Angela Guest, Democratic Services Officer, Surrey 
County Council

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 020 8541 9075

E-MAIL: angela.guest@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 73

12

Item 12

mailto:angela.guest@surreycc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
SURREY POLICE & CRIME PANEL

ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER- 19 September 2018  

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Police & Crime Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes 
against their recommendations or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each Panel meeting.

Date of 
meeting 

Item Recommendations/Actions Responsible 
Officer/ 
Member

Comments Suggested Date 
of Completion

28 June 2018 PCC Annual Report R7/18 - That formal notification of the 
Panels acceptance of the Annual 
Report would be sent to the 
Commissioner.

DSO Letter to be drafted on behalf of 
Chair and sent to PCC

COMPLETED

Friday 13 July

28 June 2018 Surrey Police Group 
Financial Report For 
Month 12 - 2017/18  

R8/18 - That a link to the online 
papers for the joint audit committee 
be sent to the Panel.

OPCC COMPLETED Friday 13 July

28 June 2018 OPCC 2017/18 End Of 
Year Financial Report  

R9/18 - That further information on 
the additional audit costs taken on by 
Surrey be forwarded to the Panel.

CFO COMPLETED Friday 13 July

28 June 2018 Victim Satisfaction R10/18 - That the Commissioner 
would provide information on the 
following unanswered queries:

 What percentage choose not 
be contacted again by the 
VARC (paragraph 2.3 of the 
report)?

 What does enhanced and 
non-enhanced mean 
(paragraph 2.6 of the report)?

 What are grades 1, 3 and 4 
callers?

OPCC COMPLETED Friday 13 July

P
age 75

12



28 June 2018 Development Of An 
Internal Victim Care 
Unit

R11/18 - Commissioner to report 
back on what ‘priority crime’ is as 
referred to in paragraph 3.1.7 of the 
submitted report.

OPCC COMPLETED Friday 13 July

28 June 2018 Feedback On 
Management Meetings 
Between The PCC And 
CC  

R12/18 - That the Panel be sent 
details of the following:

a. The new scorecard
b. Update of number of people 

still wanted for burglary 
following the HMIPC report

OPCC a) COMPLETED

b) Awaiting details

Friday 13 July

28 June 2018 Fraud Update  R13/18 - That details of Operation 
Signature be provided to Panel 
Members.

OPCC COMPLETED Friday 13 July

28 June 2018 Workplan R15/18 - To request a short briefing 
note containing the following items 
listed in the Forward Plan (Tracker 
R15/18):
 Use of drones – is this figured in 

strategic decisions the same way 
say body cams are?  Is there 
funding?

 Coercion – What are coercive 
crimes

 Neighbourhood Watch – A 
summary on where this stands at 
the moment.

 CCTV Review update – details of 
where and how this will be 
provided especially as part of the 
Estates Strategy.

OPCC Once briefing received may 
come off the Forward Plan.

COMPLETED

Friday 13 JulyP
age 76

12



7 Dec 2017 INDEPENDENT 
REVIEW OF SURREY/ 
SUSSEX JOINT 
FINANCE TEAM [item 
15] 

R12/17 – For the OPCC to provide 
the Panel with a six month review 
report

OPCC On workplan for September 
2018 meeting

Sept 2018

7 Dec 2017 FIRE GOVERNANCE 
[item 7]

R14/18 – For the PCC to provide the 
Panel with an update report. 

PCC Update on latest position. On 
the workplan for Nov 2018.

November 2018

P
age 77

12



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex to the Tracker

PCP UPDATES AND BRIEFINGS ON TRACKER ITEMS REQUESTED AT MEETING OF 28 JUNE 2018

Tracker 
Ref.

Details

(To be read in conjunction with the Tracker)

R8/18 Link to the online papers for the joint audit committee be sent to the 
Panel.

http://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/2018/04/joint-audit-committee-25th-april-2018-agenda/

R9/18 That further information on the additional audit costs taken on by 
Surrey be forwarded to the Panel.

The estimated cost of the Finance Resilience Review carried out by our Internal Auditors 
RSM is £28,750.

R10/18 That the Commissioner would provide information on the following 
unanswered queries:

a) What percentage choose not be contacted again by the VARC (paragraph 2.3 of 
the report)?

The data the OPCC receives from Victim Support allows us to see the number of referrals, 
the number of successful and unsuccessful contacts, the number of individuals that 
receive a generalist service and the number of individuals that move onto more intensive 
support. Whilst we can see the attrition rates across these interventions, we do not have a 
specific breakdown of service users that decline further contract following the first 
telephone call.

b) What does enhanced and non-enhanced mean (paragraph 2.6 of the report)?

Under the current contract Victim Support prioritise those who have suffered the most 
serious forms of crime, have been persistently targeted or who are considered vulnerable. 
These individuals are considered “enhanced”.   Others will form the non-enhanced.

c) What are grades 1, 3 and 4 callers?

Deployment of Resources Procedure
Governing Policy  
National Contact Management Principles and Guidance

1. Introduction
1.1 Call takers in the Contact Centre will make the decision to deploy to an incident based 
upon a rigorous assessment of threat, harm and risk to the individuals concerned and the 
wider community, using the NDM. This will be done in accordance with National Call 
Grading Criteria, contained within the National Contact Grades (detailed in the National 
Contact Management Principles and Guidance).

Page 79

12

http://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/2018/04/joint-audit-committee-25th-april-2018-agenda/


Annex to the Tracker

2. Procedure Statement
 2.1 Grading decisions will be made at first point of contact by the call taker with the 
customer’s expectations around deployment being managed as per the Contact Centre 
Scripting Guidelines. Grades will not be changed by the Force Control Room (FCR) 
unless OPS1/2 has authorised it and if downgraded, the customer has been updated. All 
reasons for grade changes must be clearly articulated within the ICAD event comments.
2.2 It is expected that all operational resources will book on to ICAD via Airwave promptly 
at the start of their shift and will update their status regularly using the keys on their 
Airwave handset. At the end of their shift they will book off accordingly. 

3. Grade 1 (Emergency) 
FCR will find the nearest available unit to attend which may include the Targeted Patrol 
Team (TPT), Safer Neighbourhood Team (SNT) and Specialist Operations units (Armed 
Response, Dog Units, Roads Policing Team etc.). No resource type will be discounted 
unless there are specific risks associated with the incident which would prevent a resource 
from being assigned e.g. PCSO etc. 

4. Grade 2 (Priority)
FCR will find the nearest available unit to attend with concentration being given to TPT 
and Specialist Operations Resources. Where an available SNT resource would be a more 
effective resource to deal with an issue, then this should be considered.

5. Grade 3 Unscheduled Event
Incidents will be placed on the Demand Reduction/Resolution (DRT) tab for review by the 
DRT staff. All incidents will be reviewed and assessed. Where there is Police action 
needed the DRT will create the necessary Niche occurrence. Where possible remote 
enquires will be carried out to reduce the resource demand on APT. Incidents that require 
face to face contact will have the Niche occurrence allocated to the relevant Borough 
workload for APT action.

6. Grade 4 Non-Deployment
Incidents passed to the FCR as a grade 4 will generally involve a request for an attention 
drawn to made via Airwave. On receipt of a grade 4 the FCR will assess the incident and 
should there be resources available and it is appropriate to do so, efforts will be made to 
deploy a unit/s. Where this occurs the incident grade must be changed to reflect this 
attendance.

https://www.surrey.police.uk/policies-and-procedures/deployment-of-resources-
procedure/

R11/18 Commissioner to report back on what ‘priority crime’ is as referred to 
in paragraph 3.1.7 of the submitted report.

Priority crimes include:- 
1. Crimes identified within the Strategic Assessment as a Force priority 
2. Crimes identified within the Tactical Assessment as a local priority 
3. Crimes that indicates a potential risk to an individual 
4. Crimes that have a serious impact on Community Confidence  
5. Crimes that represent a serious risk to the reputation of the force 
6. Repeat or vulnerable victims of Crime or Anti-Social Behaviour 
7. Organised Crime 

Page 80

12

https://www.surrey.police.uk/policies-and-procedures/deployment-of-resources-procedure/
https://www.surrey.police.uk/policies-and-procedures/deployment-of-resources-procedure/


Annex to the Tracker

R12/18 That the Panel be sent details of the following:

a) The new scorecard – OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

NOT TO BE CIRCULATED FURTHER THAN MEMBERS OF THE PANEL PLEASE.

Scorecard is attached to email

b) Update of number of people still wanted for burglary following the HMIPC report

I believe this relates to the recommendation made in the HMICFRS Effectiveness 
Inspection of Surrey Police published in March 2018. The HMICFRS area for improvement 
(AFI) given was: 
“The force should ensure that people who are circulated as being wanted on the police 
national computer, people who fail to appear on police bail, named and outstanding 
suspects, and suspects identified through forensic evidence, are swiftly found and 
arrested.” Within the report the HMICFRS also said that Surrey Police didn’t have good 
systems for tracking wanted suspects or monitoring data. 
Surrey Police has acted on this recommendation and has put in better recording and 
tracking systems for outstanding suspects. All suspects are regularly reviewed and are 
part of local tasking meetings. 
In relation to the data requested, there are currently 26 outstanding suspects across the 
force in the categories of Burglary Dwelling, Aggravated Burglary and Commercial 
Business. They all have wanted files and are part of live investigations. There are a further 
15 ‘Wanted Persons’ on the Police National Computer all being regularly reviewed by the 
performance teams and actioned as appropriate. 
The force will be inspected again this Autumn and HMIC will provide a view on whether 
the force has made progress on the AFI. 

R13/18 That details of Operation Signature be provided to Panel Members.

Operation Signature is the force campaign to identify and support vulnerable victims of 
fraud within Sussex.

The Operation Signature work focuses on the protection of the vulnerable members of our 
communities in Sussex, preventing them from becoming victims of such fraud and subject 
to further financial loss.

We have a process for recognising victims of all fraud as victims of crime and providing 
preventative measures to support and protect them from further targeting. This can 
include helping them to change their phone number to an ex-directory number, contacting 
family to suggest Power of Attorney, mail re-direction, offering them advice on call 
blocking devices and referring them to other support services.

We also aim to raise awareness of the issue within our communities through our 
Neighbourhood Policing Teams and the media, encouraging people to take preventative 
steps.

Further information on this and Fraud can be found on the link below:

https://sussex.police.uk/advice/protect-yourself-and-others/fraud/operation-signature/

Page 81

12

https://sussex.police.uk/advice/protect-yourself-and-others/fraud/operation-signature/


Annex to the Tracker

R15/18 To request a short briefing note containing the following items listed 
in the Forward Plan

a) Use of drones - Drones (Unmanned Aerial Vehicles)

An Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (UAV) is an aircraft without a human pilot on board. The 
term UAV covers a wide range of systems from the small children’s toy to large military 
systems. UAVs are most often referred to as drones and this is how the police service 
refer to them.

Our drones are small battery-powered rotor systems. Commonly known as quadcopters, 
they are powered by four electric motors. They take off and land vertically like helicopters.
We have five Aeryon SkyRangers which weigh 2.6 kg including the battery and camera. 
They can operate in all weather conditions and in winds of up to 65 kilometres per hour.
All our drones were purchased using external funding grants. They cost £64,000 each 
including the cameras. We currently have 40 operators in Surrey and Sussex.

The systems have the option of carrying the following cameras:
• Dual daylight/thermal camera (4 x digital zoom) 
• Daylight HD camera (4 x digital zoom) 
• Daylight HD camera (30 x Optical Zoom)

We are using drones to:
 Assist with searches for missing people
 Assist with investigations into road traffic collisions, major crime incidents and 

Industrial Accident investigations.
 Assist with event planning and management
 Provide situational awareness to officers and Commanders in a variety of policing 

situations.

Sussex and Surrey Police drones are only deployed for specific operational tasks and are 
not used for general patrol/surveillance. They are not patrolling the skies on a daily basis.

Using drones will help us:
 Use our resources more effectively by having the right resources in the right place 

at the right time to resolve incidents quickly.
 Enhance the safety of the public and police by deploying a drone into situations 

which would otherwise involve risks to individuals.
 Provide good quality evidence to assist apprehension and prosecution of 

offenders.
 Enhance joint working with other Emergency Services.

The Emergency Services need to work within the existing legislation and regulation in 
respect of drone use. We operate in accordance with our permission granted by the Civil 
Aviation Authority (CAA). All our operators have passed a CAA accredited training course 
and are qualified remote pilots. We are fully insured.

We have liaised closely with the Information and Surveillance Commissioners offices and 
worked with them in developing specific Privacy Impact Assessments for police use of 
drones and a self-assessment document to test compliance against the CCTV codes of 
practice.

The Surveillance Commissioner has visited Sussex and viewed a drone being operated, 
declaring confidence in how police are using drones.

Page 82

12



Annex to the Tracker

We have used the same processes for storing images taken by drones as we do for our 
Body Worn Video cameras.

https://www.surrey.police.uk/about-us/our-equipment-to-aid-policing-in-surrey/

b) Coercion – What are coercive crimes?

This is nationally defined offence
https://www.cps.gov.uk/legal-guidance/controlling-or-coercive-behaviour-intimate-or-
family-relationship

c) Neighbourhood Watch

http://www.surreynhw.org.uk/

If Panel Members have a need of specific information relevant to the work of the Panel, 
after viewing the website, please do let the Democratic Services Support Officer know.

d) CCTV Review update – details of where and how this will be provided especially 
as part of the Estates Strategy.

Please find attached a high level summary of a paper that is due to go to the next 
Community Safety Board on 12 September 2018 – OFFICIAL SENSITIVE. There 
shouldn’t be any major impact on the estates strategy as cameras are council owned and 
the strategy will reflect this going forward.  

Page 83

12

https://www.surrey.police.uk/about-us/our-equipment-to-aid-policing-in-surrey/
https://www.cps.gov.uk/legal-guidance/controlling-or-coercive-behaviour-intimate-or-family-relationship
https://www.cps.gov.uk/legal-guidance/controlling-or-coercive-behaviour-intimate-or-family-relationship
http://www.surreynhw.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2
Surrey Police and Crime Panel- Forward Work Programme 2018/19 

The purpose of this document is to provide a summary of work due to be undertaken by the Surrey Police and Crime Panel. It is provided for 
information purposes at each meeting of the Panel and updated between meetings by officers to reflect any future areas of work. Members can 

suggest items for consideration to the Chairman or the Panel Support Officer.

DATE ITEM PURPOSE OFFICER
Sept 2018 Commissioning Arrangements The wider overall strategy for 

commissioning is currently being 
developed and could be presented in 
September

OPCC

PCC new responsibilities in terms of 
complaints

Panel to receive a report. Relate to 
proposed new powers of investigation 
for complaints sub committee.

OPCC

Police and Crime Plan Update
(Twice yearly – April/Sept)

To consider progress made against 
the agreed Police and Crime Plan.

OPCC

Review of Joint Finance Team Update report OPCC
Medium Term Financial Plan This report was deferred from the 

June meeting due a number of 
substantial updates required due to 
current projects with a deadline of the 
end of June.

OPCC

Standing Items – see list below

P
age 85

12



Appendix 2

DATE ITEM PURPOSE OFFICER
Nov 2018 Budget Update

(Twice per year – Nov & Jan/Feb)
As agreed at the precept setting 
meeting on 6 February 2013, to allow 
the Panel to have oversight of the 
latest financial position.  

Johanna Burne / Ian Perkin

Performance Monitoring of the APCC 
for Victims 
(annually Nov/Dec)

The PCC has agreed to provide the 
Panel with progress made by his 
APCC.

Johanna Burne

Fire Governance Update PCC to bring his decision report to 
PCP.

OPCC

JET update For the Panel to receive a report and 
monitor performance.

OPCC
(deferred from Sept as Model 
undergoing changes)

Modern Slavery Panel to receive a report detailing 
level and work of PCC in modern 
slavery.

Video Enabled Justice Panel to receive a report on what it is, 
how it works and how and when it is 
used.

Standing Items – see list below

P
age 86

12



Appendix 2
2019/20

DATE ITEM PURPOSE OFFICER
Jan/Feb 2019 The Police and Crime Commissioner’s 

Proposed Precept
The Police and Crime Panel is 
required to consider and formally 
respond to the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s proposed precept for 
2017/18.

Ian Perkin

Budget Update
(Twice per year – Nov & Jan/Feb)

As agreed at the precept setting 
meeting on 6 February 2013, to allow 
the Panel to have oversight of the 
latest financial position.  

Johanna Burne / Ian Perkin

Standing Items – see list below

DATE ITEM PURPOSE OFFICER
April 2019 The Police and Crime Commissioner’s 

Proposed Precept
The Police and Crime Panel is 
required to consider and formally 
respond to the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s proposed precept for 
2017/18.

Ian Perkin

Standing Items – see list below

P
age 87

12



Appendix 2

DATE ITEM PURPOSE OFFICER
June 2019 – AGM Governance Items 2018/19:

 Election of Chairman
 Election of Vice Chairman
 Re-establish Complaints SC
 Re-establish Finance SC

Panel to agree memberships and 
Terms of Reference

DSO

PCC Annual Report The Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act (2011) places a 
duty on Police and Crime 
Commissioners to produce an Annual 
Report. Members of the Panel are 
asked to comment on the report prior 
to its formal publication.

OPCC

PCP Budget – Actual Expenditure 
2018/19

End of year report – will include 
webcast stats

DSO

MTFP OPCC

Standing Items – see list below

P
age 88

12



Appendix 2

STANDING ITEMS – these items will appear on every agenda

Subject/Title Dates Purpose Contact Officer

Feedback on Performance 
Meetings

All To consider issues raised during monthly discussions 
between the PCC and the Chief Constable.

Johanna Burne

Recommendations Tracker 
and  Forward Work 
Programme

All To monitor responses, actions and outcomes against 
recommendations or requests for further actions.  To 
provide a summary of work due to be undertaken by 
the Surrey Police and Crime Panel and work that has 
recently been completed.

Democratic Services 
Officer

Commissioners Question 
Time 

All For the Panel to raise any issues or queries 
concerning crime and policing in Surrey with the 
Commissioner. 

Democratic Services 
Officer

Complaints All To monitor complaints received against the PCC and / 
or the DPCC

Scrutiny Officer

P
age 89

12



Appendix 2
Working Groups 

Group Membership Purpose Reporting Dates

Complaints Sub-Committee  IM Bryan Cross
 IM David Fitzpatrick -Grime
 Cllr David Reeve
 Cllr Margaret Cooksey
 Cllr Victor Broad
 Vice-Chairman
 Chairman

To resolve non-criminal 
complaints against the PCC 
and/or the DPCC.

Report to each meeting of the PCP, 
detailing any complaints dealt with 
since the last meeting.

Finance Sub-Group  Cllr Josephine Hawkins 
 IM Bryan Cross
 Cllr Victor Broad
 Chairman (ex-officio)
 Vice-Chairman (ex-officio)

To provide expert advice to the 
PCP on financial matters that falls 
within its remit.

Reports verbally to the formal precept 
setting meeting of the Panel in 
February.

P
age 90

12



SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING

19 September 2018

SUMMARY

This report sets out all complaints against the Police and Crime Commissioner that have 
been received since the last meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Police and Crime Panel is asked to:

(i) Note the content of the report.

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

1.1 The Elected Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012 
make Surrey’s Police and Crime Panel responsible for overseeing complaints 
made about the conduct of the Police and Crime Commissioner  and the Deputy 
Police and Crime Commissioner (DPCC).

1.2 Where a complaint is received by the Panel1, a report is produced for the next 
available meeting, setting out the nature of the complaint(s) received and details 
of any action taken.

2.0 ANALYSIS AND PROGRESS

2.1 The Panel has a responsibility to informally resolve non-criminal complaints about 
the conduct of the PCC and DPCC, as well as criminal complaints or conduct 
matters that are referred back to it by the Independent Office for Police Conduct 
(IOPC). 

2.2 For the above, the Panel agreed at its meeting on 13 December 2012 to delegate 
informal resolution of complaints to a Complaints Sub-Committee.

2.3 However, in accordance with the Regulations, complaints received by the Panel 
that do not relate to the conduct of the PCC or DPCC (such as operational 

1 At its meeting on 13 December 2012 the Panel agreed to delegate initial receipt / filtering of 
complaints to the Chief Executive of the PCC’s Office.

Page 91

13

Item 13



concerns and policy disputes) are referred to the most appropriate body for 
resolution instead of the Complaints Sub-Committee.

2.4 Appendix A sets out details of the complaints considered by the Panel since its 
last meeting and the action taken.

3.0 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING

3.1 The Complaints Sub-Committee have received one complaint since the last Panel 
meeting. 

4.0 EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 It is vital that any complaints process is open to all residents and that each and 
every complainant is treated with respect and courtesy. The Complaints Protocol 
agreed by the Panel on 13 December 2012 is designed to be an equitable process 
and will be monitored by the Panel’s Support Officer to ensure that it is fit for 
purpose.

5.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 The Panel is asked to note the information in Appendix A. 

6.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 To allow the Panel to have oversight of complaints made against the 
Commissioner.

7.0 WHAT HAPPENS NEXT

7.1 Any future complaints will be reported to the next available meeting of the Panel.

SUPPORT OFFICER: Angela Guest, Democratic Services Officer, Surrey 
County Council

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 020 8541 9075

E-MAIL: angela.guest@surreycc.gov.uk 

Page 92

13

mailto:angela.guest@surreycc.gov.uk


Appendix A

Complaints Received Since the Last PCP Meeting (28 June 2018) 

Date 
received

Nature of complaint Does the 
complaint, or an 
element of the 
complaint, relate 
to conduct of a 
relevant office 
holder?

Does the complaint, 
or an element of the 
complaint, relate to 
an alleged criminal 
offence?

Details / Action taken

9 August 2018 Ref: PCP 0032 - A request has been 
received from a previous multiple 
complainant for the sub-committee 
to reconsider its decisions on 
previous complaints made about the 
PCC.

No No The Head of Legal Services will be providing legal 
advice to the sub-committee.

P
age 93

13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

15

Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 97

16

Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes
	19/18 RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF THE COMPLAINTS SUB COMMITTEE
	ITEM 19 - Complaints Sub-Committee Flowchart - annex B

	20/18 RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF THE FINANCE SUB GROUP

	5 COMMISSIONING ARRANGEMENTS
	item 05 - OPCC Commissioning Strategy 2018-19 Final

	6 POLICE AND CRIME PLAN QUARTERLY UPDATE
	7 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
	item 07 - MTFP Tables app A

	8 NEW RESPONSIBILITIES FOR POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER REGARDING COMPLAINTS
	9 FEEDBACK ON PERFORMANCE MEETINGS
	10 DISCLOSURE ISSUES
	ITEM 10 - 2018-09-19 - Disclosure Appendix A

	11 COMMISSIONERS QUESTION TIME
	12 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	ITEM 12 - draft tracker
	PCP UPDATES AND BRIEFINGS ON TRACKER ITEMS REQUESTED AT MEETING OF 28 JUNE 2018
	ITEM 12 -  workplan

	13 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING
	ITEM 13 - complaints appendix

	15 REVIEW OF JOINT FINANCE TEAM
	16 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANELS

